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CAUTIONARY STATEMENT CONCERNING FORWARD-LOOKING INF ORMATION

This annual report on Form X0-and other materials filed by us with the Secasitand Exchange Commission, and information ind
in oral statements or other written statements noade be made by us, contain certain "forwhkroking statements” within the meaning of
Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995n\Astatements contained herein that are not statisnoé historical fact, including stateme
regarding guidance, industry prospects or futuselte of operations or financial position madehiis report are forward-looking.

We often use words such as anticipates, believggats, intends and similar expressions to ideritiffvardiooking statements. The
statements are based on manageraenitrent expectations and accordingly are sultfecincertainty and changes in circumstances. A
results may vary materially from the expectationgtained herein due to various important factarsiuiding (but not limited to): consun
preferences, spending and debt levels; the gemecsomic and credit environment; interest rateas@eal variations in consumer purcha
activities; the ability to achieve the most effeetiproduct category mixes to maximize sales andyimasbjectives; competitive pressures
sales; pricing and gross sales margins; the Ievedlole and satellite distribution for our programgiand the associated fees or estimatec
savings from contract renegotiations; our abildyestablish and maintain acceptable commercialstavith thirdparty vendors and other th
parties with whom we have contractual relationshial to successfully manage key vendor relatigsshour ability to successfully man:
and maintain our brand name and marketing inittivour ability to manage our operating expensesessfully and our working capi
levels; our ability to remain compliant with ournlpterm credit facility covenants; the market demand television station sales; ¢
management and information systems infrastructtiallenges to our data and information securitygngfes in governmental or regulai
requirements; litigation or governmental proceediaffecting our operations; the risks identifiedlenitem 1A (Risk Factors) in this ann
report on Form 10k; significant public events that are difficult faredict, such as widespread weather catastrophegher significar
television€overing events causing an interruption of televistoverage or that directly compete with the vieshig of our programming; a
our ability to employ and retain key executives anaployees. You are cautioned not to place undienoe on forwardeoking statement
which speak only as of the date of this filing. \We under no obligation (and expressly disclaim sugh obligation) to update or alter
forward-looking statements whether as a resultesf mformation, future events or otherwise.
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PART |

Iltem 1. Business

When we refer to "we," "our," "us" or the "Compdhye mean ValueVision Media, Inc. and its subsiésunless the context indice
otherwise. ValueVision Media, Inc. is a Minnesotaporation with principal and executive offices dbed at 6740 Shady Oak Road, E
Prairie, Minnesota 55344-3433. ValueVision Media¢.lwas incorporated on June 25, 1990. Our fisear yended February 2, 2018
designated fiscal 2012 , our fiscal year endedagn2B, 2012 is designated fiscal 2011 and ouafigear ended January 29, 204 Hesignate
fiscal 2010 . Fiscal 2012 contained 53 weeks asthfi2011 and fiscal 2010 both contained 52 weeks.

A. General

We are a multichannel electronic retailer that retgksells and distributes products to consumecaigh TV, telephone, online, mok
and social media. Our principal form of product @syre is our 24our television shopping network, ShopNBC, whicllistributed primaril
through cable and satellite affiliation agreemeats] markets brand name and private label prodndise categories of jewelry & watch
home & consumer electronics; beauty, health & fijeand fashion & accessories. We also operate N\B©rgom, a comprehensive e-
commerce platform that sells products appearingoon television shopping channel as well as an eddnassortment of onlinenly
merchandise. Our programming and products are rabtxeted via mobile devices, including smartphoamed tablets such as the iPad,
through the leading social media channels.

ShopNBC is distributed into approximately 84 miflioomes, primarily through cable and satellite &fibn agreements, agreements
telecommunications companies such as AT&T and Vderiand the purchase of month-to-month full- and-pare lease agreements of ce
and broadcast television time. ShopNBC programniénglso streamed live on the internet at www.shopmdm. We also distribute ¢
programming through a companyned full power television station in Boston, Massusetts and through leased carriage on a fullej
television station in Seattle, Washington.

We have an exclusive trademark license from NBCbrsal Media, LLC, formerly known as NBC Univershdge. ("NBCU"), for the
worldwide use of an NB®randed name for a period ending in January 20a#uRnt to the license, we operate our televismméishoppin
network and our internet website, ShopNBC.com.

Multi-media Retailing

Our primary form of multi-media retailing is ouwvé 24hour television shopping network. ShopNBC is thidthargest televisio
shopping channel in the United States. ShopNBC.iscemcomprehensive e-commerce website with compleamgand welpnly products. Ne
sales, including shipping and handling revenudaled $586.8 million , $558.4 million and $562.3Iion for fiscal 2012, fiscal 2011 and fisi
2010 , respectively. Shoppers can interact and sfop tollfree telephone number and place orders directli wit or enter an order on
ShopNBC.com website. Our television programmingpiieduced at our Eden Prairie, Minnesota headquaftegility and is transmitte
nationally via satellite to cable system operatdisgct-tohome satellite providers, broadcast televisioni@tabperators, to our owned f
power broadcast television station WWDP TV in Bostdlassachusetts and through a leased full poveadorst television station in Sea
Washington.

Products and Product Mix

Products sold on our multihredia platforms include primarily: jewelry & watchéhome & consumer electronics, beauty, healthti@efis
and fashion & accessories. Historically jewelry avaiches have been our largest merchandise cagegt¥ie are currently working to shift «
product mix to include a more diversified produss@tment in order to grow our new and active gustobase. The following table shows
merchandise mix as a percentage of television helm@ping and internet net merchandise sales foyehes indicated by product categ
group:

Merchandise Category Fiscal 2012  Fiscal 2011  Fiscal 2010
Jewelry & Watches 52% 53% 52%
Home & Consumer Electronics 27% 28% 32%
Beauty, Health & Fitness 13% 12% 10%
Fashion & Accessories 8% 7% 6%
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Jewelry & Watches. ShopNBC features an assortment of gold, stedilvgr, and platinum jewelry, offering consumers thtest in fin
and fashion jewelry. Additionally, ShopNBC hostseatensive collection of men’s and women'’s watdines classic to modern designs.

Home & Consumer ElectronicsShopNBC features the latest in home décor, bddoath textiles, kitchen appliances, mattressesng
accessories, and home furnishings that add furaditgrand style to any space. With consumer el@itsg ShopNBC is always on the look
to capitalize on the latest technology trends antdti®ns for today's consumer, direct from soméhefworld's most recognized brands.

Beauty, Health & Fithess.ShopNBC's beauty, health and fitness assortneattifes products that inspire today's women to toakfee
great. ShopNBC offers a variety of skincare, cogteagaind head-to-toe products in addition to theskenutritional and weigHtss supplemen
and fitness accessories.

Fashion & Accessories.ShopNBC features fashionable looks that fit atyesand strike a balance between what's hot anat's
essential. Offering a wide assortment of apparatemwvear, intimates, handbags, accessories, antvdan ShopNBC provides tods
consumer with easy, affordable style.

B. Company Strategy

As a premium multichannel electronic retailer, ctirategy is to offer our customers differentiatadhldy brands and products a
compelling value proposition. We also seek to ptevioday's consumers with flexible programming fatsrand access that allow them to \
and interact with our content and products at tbeitvenience —whenever and wherever they are able. Our merchampdisitioning aims
make us a trusted destination for quality and ghaity in a broad category of merchandise. We $oon creating a customer experience
builds strong loyalty and a growing customer base.

In support of this strategy, we are pursuing thefdng actions to improve the operational and ficial performance of our compa
(i) expand and diversify our product mix to appeamore customers, to increase the purchase fregusnactive customers and to incre
customer retention rates, (ii) increase new anyecustomers and improve household penetratidhjnrease our gross margin dollars
maintaining merchandise margins in key productgaies while prudently managing inventory levelg) énhance our customer satisfac
through a variety of investments in technology,npotional activity and improved and competitive cusér service policies, (v) manage
fixed operating and transaction expenses, (vi) goaw internet and mobile business with expandediygbassortments and interrgatly
merchandise offerings, (vii) expand our internedpite and social media channels to attract andrret@re customers, and (viii) maintain ce
and satellite carriage contracts at appropriatatiurs while seeking cost savings opportunities iamgioved footprint productivity throuy
better channel positions and dual illumination aitiple channels.

C. Television Program Distribution and Internet Operations

Net sales from our television home shopping businieglusive of shipping and handling revenuesléat $319 million , $307 million
and $330 million , representing 54% , 55% and 59%oasolidated net sales for fiscal 2012, fiscal P@nd fiscal 2010respectively. Net sal
from our internet website business, inclusive apgimg and handling revenues, totaled $268 milljo$251 million , and $232 million
representing 46% , 45% and 41% of consolidatedsa&ds for fiscal 2012, fiscal 2011 and fiscal 2Q1@spectively. Our internet sa
percentage is calculated based on sales ordersrihaenerated from our ShopNBC.com website andapily ordered directly online. O
television programming continues to be the mostiigant medium through which we reach our cust@rard we believe that our televis
home shopping broadcast program is a key drivetraffic to our ShopNBC.com website. Our internetsibess represents an impor
component of our future growth opportunities, arelwill continue to invest in and enhance our iné¢toased capabilities.

Television Home Shopping Network

Satellite Delivery of Programming.Our television network is presently distributeid eommunications satellite transponders to ¢
systems and direct-toeme satellite providers, a full power televisioati®on in Boston and one leased broadcast statioSdattle. |
January 2005, we entered into a long-term satdddse agreement with our present provider of Igateervices. Pusuant to the terms of tl
agreement, we distribute our television network aiaatellite that was launched in August 2005. ageement provides us, under cel
circumstances, with preemptible back-up servicsatiéllite transmission is interrupted.

Television Distribution. As of February 2, 2013 , we have entered intdiafbn agreements with parties representing 1,620le
systems allowing each operator to offer our televilome shopping network substantially on a fufiet basis over their
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systems. The terms of the affiliation agreemenpéctilly range from one to fivgears. During any fiscal year, certain agreemeritis gable
satellite or other distributors may expire. Undertain circumstances, we or our distributors mayceathe agreements prior to their expirat
The affiliation agreements generally provide thatwill pay each operator a monthly access fee arsine cases marketing support payn
based on the number of homes receiving our progiagiiwWe frequently review distribution opportungigvith cable system operators
broadcast stations providing for full- or part-ticerriage of our network.

Cable operators serving a large majority of caldeskeholds offer cable programming on a digital ©abhe use of digital compress
technology provides cable companies with greatanohkl capacity. While greater channel capacityeiases the opportunity for distribut
and, in some cases, reduces access fees paid liyalssy may adversely impact our ability to congpr television viewers to the exter
results in a higher channel position for us, plagenof our programming in separate programming tire broadcast of additional competi
channels or viewer fragmentation due to a greatarer of programming alternatives.

During fiscal 2012 , there were approximately 11idliom homes in the United States with at least one teieviset. Of those hom
there were approximately 57 million basic cableetion subscribers, approximately 34 million direchome satellite subscribers
approximately 9 milliorhomes who receive programming through telephongcseproviders, such as AT&T and Verizon. Homeg teaeive
our television home shopping network 24 hours p@y dre each counted as one fitte equivalent, or FTE, and homes that receive
network for any period less than 24 hours are @mibfaised upon an analysis of time of day and dayeek that programming is received.
continue to experience growth in the number of Blikscriber homes that receive our network.

Our network is carried on direct-to-home satebigevices DIRECTV and DISH Network. Carriage is-fithe and we pay each operat
monthly access fee based upon the number of sbbssrireceiving our programming. As of February @12, our network reacht
approximately 32 million direct-to-home subscribersa full-time basis which represents approxinya®l% of the total number of direct-to-
home satellite subscribers in the United States.

As of February 2, 2013, our home shopping netwgak available to approximately 84.2 million subiserihomes, or approximatedp.&
million average FTEs, compared with approximatelly58million subscriber homes, or approximately 7¢n8lion average FTEs, as
January 28, 2012 .

Other Methods of Program DistributionOur programming is also made available file to homes in the Boston and Seattle ma
over the air via television broadcast stations aiog us or where we lease the broadcast timestalfi2012, fiscal 2011 and fiscal 2010 is
estimated that our Boston and leased Seattle statiwe responsible for approximately 3% , 3% andré&pectively, of our total consolida
net sales. In addition, our programming is alsalalke through our internet retailing website, wshopnbc.com.

Online Presence

Our website, ShopNBC.com, provides customers witlvaéch and shop anytime, anywhere experience afedsof broad array
consumer merchandise, including all products featuon our television programming as well as merdlsn sold specifically ¢
ShopNBC.com. The website includes additional resssjrincluding a live stream of our television peegming, an archive of segment:
recent past programming, videos of many individoalducts that the customer can view on demand,ndineoprogram guide, customer-
generated product reviews as well as informatiauabur ShopNBC show hosts and guest personalities.

Our ecommerce activities are subject to a number of ggrmisiness regulations and laws regarding taxadiod online commerc
There have been continuing efforts to increasdetal and regulatory obligations and restrictionscompanies conducting commerce thrc
the internet, primarily in the areas of taxatiomnsumer privacy and protection of consumer persam@rmation. For example, t
Commonwealth of Massachusetts has promulgated atgus that took effect on March 1, 2010 that ingp@s number of data secu
requirements on companies that collect certainsygfe@nformation concerning Massachusetts residérttere are indications that other st
may adopt similar requirements in the future. Achatork of state laws imposing differing securitgue@ements depending on the residenc
our customers could impose added compliance cagisut a compensating increase in revenue.

In November 2002, a number of states approved di-state agreement to simplify state sales tax lawgdigblishing one unifor
system to administer and collect sales taxes dfitivaal retailers and electronic commerce merchahhe agreement became effective
October 3, 2005. To date, 24 of the 45 statesithpbse sales a tax have passed conforming legislafi number of states and the
Congress are considering other legislative initegtithat would impose tax collection obligationsedectronic commerce. No prediction cat
made as to whether individual states or the U.Sig@#ss will enact legislation requiring retaileuels as us to collect and remit sales taxe
electronic commerce transactions.

The federal Controlling the Assault of Non-SoliditBornography and Marketing Act of 2003, or the GBRAM Act, was signed in
law on December 16, 2003 and went into effect sudey 1, 2004. The CAN-SPAM Act pre-empts simiaw$
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passed by over 30 states, some of which contatriatéans or requirements that are viewed as grithan those of the CABPAM Act. The
CAN-SPAM Act is primarily an opt-out type law; that, prior permission to sendneail solicitations to a recipient is not requirdmlt ¢
recipient may affirmatively opt out of such futuzemail solicitations. The CAN-SPAM Act requires comrcial emails to contain a clear a
conspicuous identification that the message isduersisement or solicitation for goods or servi¢asless the sender obtains prior affirma
consent from the recipient to receive such mes$agssvell as a clear and conspicuous unsubsanitetibn that allows recipients to alert
sender that they do not desire to receive futurea#-solicitation messages. In addition, the CANASPAct requires that all commercialraail
messages include a valid physical postal addredss.JAN-SPAM implementing regulations were amended in 269&he FTC to includ
among other things, a prohibition that e-mail sesdeake it difficult for a recipient to omtdt of receiving future emails from the sender.
believe the CAN-SPAM Act limits our ability to purs certain direct marketing activities, thus limgtiour sales and potential customers.

Changes in consumer protection laws also may impddgional burdens on those companies conductisgbss online. The adoptior
additional laws or regulations may decrease thevirof the internet or other online services, whichild, in turn, decrease the demand fol
products and services and increase our cost ofjdmisiness through the internet.

In addition, since our website is available oves thternet in all states, various states may cldiat we are required to qualify to
business as a foreign corporation in such stateqairement that could result in fees and taxesedsas penalties for the failure to qualify. £
new legislation or regulation, the application @ivb and regulations from jurisdictions whose lawsdt currently apply to our business or
application of existing laws and regulations to ihiernet and other online services could have teri@ adverse effect on the growth of
business in this area.

D. Relationship with NBCU, Comcast and GE Equity

Alliance with GE Equity and NBCU

In March 1999, we entered into an alliance with Gépital Equity Investments, Inc. ("GE Equity") aN@CU, pursuant to which v
issued Series A redeemable convertible preferrecksind common stock warrants, and entered intobagebolder agreement, a registra
rights agreement, a distribution and marketing @gwent and, the following year, a trademark liceageeement. On February 25, 2009,
entered into an exchange agreement with the samiggagursuant to which GE Equity exchanged atstanding shares of our Serie
preferred stock for (i) 4,929,266 shares of ourie3dB redeemable preferred stock, (ii) a warranpuechase up to 6,000,000 shares of
common stock at an exercise price of $0.75 pereshad (iii) a cash payment in the amount of $3#ani In connection with the exchan
the parties also amended and restated the 1998hsh@er agreement and registration rights agreemniémt outstanding agreements with
Equity and NBCU are described in more detail below.

The shares of Series B redeemable preferred steck& medeemable by us at any time for an initiaenegtion amount of $40.9 millic
plus accrued dividends at a base rate of 12%, cutgjeadjustment. In addition, the Series B prefgrstock provided GE Equity with cli
voting rights and the rights to designate membémuoboard of directordn April 2011, we redeemed all of the outstandimgi&s B preferre
stock for $40.9 million and paid accrued dividené$6.4 million.

In January 2011, General Electric Company ("GE')stonmated a transaction with Comcast CorporatiGorficast") pursuant to whi
GE contributed all of its holdings in NBCU to NBClvarsal, LLC, a newly formed entity, whose commajui¢y was initially beneficiall
owned 51% by Comcast and 49% by GE. As a resuhaiftransaction, NBCU became a wholly owned sudsicof NBCUniversal, LLC. |
March 2013, GE sold its remaining 49% common egqintgrest in NBCUniversal, LLC to Comcast pursutmtan agreement reachec
February 2013.

As of February 2, 2013 the direct equity ownership of GE Equity in ouongany consisted of warrants to purchase L
6,000,000 shares of common stock, and the directeoship of NBCU in our company consisted of 7,149,8hares of common stock. '
have a significant cable distribution agreemenhv@@bmcast and believe that the terms of this agee¢mre comparable to those with o
cable system operators.

In connection with the January 2011 transfer obusership in NBCU to NBCUniversal, LLC, GE alsaegd with Comcast that, for
long as GE Equity is entitled to appoint two mensbef our board of directors, NBCU will be entitlédl retain a board seat provided -
NBCU beneficially owns at least 5% of our adjustadstanding common stock (as computed under theelsblaer agreement descril
below). Furthermore, GE agreed to obtain the cansENBCU prior to consenting to our adoption ofyashareholders rights plan or cer
other actions that would impede or restrict thditgbof NBCU to acquire or dispose of shares of @oting stock or taking any action t
would result in NBCU being deemed to be in violataf the Federal Communications Commission multipl@ership regulations.
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NBCU Trademark License Agreement

On November 16, 2000, we entered into a tradenieekde agreement with NBCU pursuant to which NBCGanted us an exclusiy
worldwide license for a term of ten years to usgaie NBCU trademarks, service marks and domainasato rebrand our business
corporate name and website. We subsequently seldeenames ShopNBC and ShopNBC.com.

Under the license agreement, we have agreed, amtbeg things, to (i) certain restrictions on ustrgdemarks, service marks, don
names, logos or other source indicators owned otrakked by NBCU, (ii) the loss of our rights undgre license with respect to spec
territories outside of the United States in thengwee fail to achieve and maintain certain perfanoetargets in such territories, (iii) not o
operate, acquire or expand our business to inatedain businesses without NBCU's prior conserd, ¢omply with NBCUS privacy policie
and standards and practices, and (v) not own, tgpesaquire or expand our business such thattlurg-or more of our revenues or
aggregate value is attributable to certain servines including retailing services similar to owisting ecommerce operations) provided c
the internet. The license agreement also gramBtoU the right to terminate the license agreeméang time upon certain changes of cor
of our Company, in certain situations upon theufailby NBCU to own a certain minimum percentagewfoutstanding capital stock on a fi
diluted basis, and certain other situations.

On May 11, 2012, we amended our trademark licegsseaent for the use of the ShopNBC brand name MBEU, extending the ter
of the license agreement through January 31, 28%4consideration for the amendment, we paid NBCUn$dion upon execution of tt
amendment and agreed to pay NBCU an additional $2l®n on May 15, 2013, which is included in aged liabilities in the accompanyi
February 2, 2018onsolidated balance sheet. NBCU has the rightrmihate the trademark license agreement if (iywgee to be in materi
breach of, default under or n@empliance with the terms and conditions of oudirécility with PNC Bank, National Associationres:
such breach, default or n@empliance is cured within 90 days or consenteat twaived by the lender or agent under the creditify), or (i)
if credit availability under the credit facility yp$ our unrestricted cash were to fall below $8iamill In addition, in the event that we were nc
renew our trademark license agreement upon exmiratie agreed we will enter into a separate trismsagreement with NBCU, on terms i
subject to the conditions to be mutually agreedvbenh the parties, relating to the threenth period prior to the January 31, 2014, exjin
date.

On May 16, 2011, we issued 689,6&%res of common stock to NBCU as consideratiorafprevious one year extension of the <
trademark license agreement. Shares issued waredvat $6.04¢er share, representing the fair market value ofcommon stock on the d;
of issuance.

Amended and Restated Shareholder Agreement

On February 25, 2009, we entered into an amendddestated shareholder agreement with GE EquityNB@U, which provides fc
certain corporate governance and standstill matirte amended and restated shareholder agreenwritigs that GE Equity is entitled
designate nominees for three out of nine membesupfboard of directors so long as the aggregatefiidal ownership of GE Equity a
NBCU (and their affiliates) is at least equal to%b®f their beneficial ownership as of February 2609 (i.e., beneficial ownership
approximately 8.75 million common shares, includiagsuch purpose, shares of our common stock lidsua GE Equity upon exercise of
warrant for 6,000,00Ghares of our common stock), and two out of nieenimers so long as their aggregate beneficial owipeis at least 10!
of the shares of "adjusted outstanding common staskdefined in the amended and restated shaehatgteement. In addition, the amer
and restated shareholder agreement provides th&dsy may designate any of its directtesignees to be an observer of the audit, h
resources and compensation, and corporate gover@angcnominating committees of our board of dinexcto

The amended and restated shareholder agreemeiresetile consent of GE Equity prior to our enteiimg any material agreements v
any of CBS, Fox, Disney, Time Warner or Viacom (&#meir respective affiliates), provided that thestriction will no longer apply when eitt
(i) our trademark license agreement with NBCU (désd above) has terminated or (i) GE Equity idarger entitled to designate at least
director nominees. In addition, the amended anthtex$ shareholder agreement requires the conseBEdEquity prior to our (i) exceedi
certain thresholds relating to the issuance of ritées; the payment of dividends, the repurchaseedemption of common stock, acquisiti
(including investments and joint ventures) or d&pons, and the incurrence of debt; (ii) enterimgp any business different than what we
our subsidiaries are currently engaged; and f(iigading our articles of incorporation to adverseffect GE Equity and NBCU (or th
affiliates); provided, however, that these reswits will no longer apply when both (1) GE Equity no longer entitled to designate tt
director nominees and (2) GE Equity and NBCU naytarhold any Series B preferred stock. We are @ishibited from taking any action ti
would cause any ownership interest by us in telewibroadcast stations from being attributable E0E&juity, NBCU or their affiliates.

The amended and restated shareholder agreemenerfymovides that during the "standstill periods @efined in the amended :
restated shareholder agreement), subject to céigited exceptions, GE Equity and NBCU are protatifrom: (i) making any asset/busin
purchases from us in excess of 10% of the totalrfeirket value of our assets; (ii) increasing theneficial ownership above 39.9% of
shares, treating as outstanding and actually ovioreslich purpose shares of our common
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stock issuable to GE Equity upon exercise of therave for 6,000,000shares of our common stock; (iii) making or in avgy participating i
any solicitation of proxies; (iv) depositing any adir securities in a voting trust; (v) forming,joig or in any way becoming a member
"13D Group" with respect to any of our voting setes; (vi) arranging any financing for, or proundj any financing commitment specifice
for, the purchase of any of our voting securiti@s(vii) otherwise acting, whether alone or in ceriovith others, to seek to propose to us
tender or exchange offer, merger, business conibmatestructuring, liquidation, recapitalizatiom similar transaction involving us,
nominating any person as a director of our compang is not nominated by the then incumbent direstor proposing any matter to be vc
upon by our shareholders. If, during the standgéliod, any inquiry has been made regarding atedr transaction” or "change in contr
each as defined in the amended and restated skdgehgreement, that has not been rejected by@andbof directors, or our board of direct
pursues such a transaction, or engages in negosatir provides information to a third party and board has not resolved to terminate
discussions, then GE Equity or NBCU may proposasta tender offer or business combination proposal.

In addition, unless GE Equity and NBCU beneficiallyn less than 5% or more than 90% of the adjusteéstanding shares of comn
stock, GE Equity and NBCU shall not sell, transberotherwise dispose of any securities of our camgpaxcept for transfers: (i) to cert
affiliates who agree to be bound by the provisiohthe amended and restated shareholder agree(igtitat have been consented to by
(iii) subject to certain exceptions, pursuant tthiad-party tender offer, (iv) pursuant to a merger, clidation or reorganization to which
are a party, (v) in an underwritten public offeripgrsuant to an effective registration statemeiif,pursuant to Rule 144 of the Securities
of 1933, or (vii) in a private sale or pursuantRole 144A of the Securities Act of 1933; providétht in the case of any transfer pursua
clause (v), (vi) or (vii), the transfer does nosuk in, to the knowledge of the transferor aftessonable inquiry, any other person acqui
after giving effect to such transfer, beneficialr®sship, individually or in the aggregate with thatsons affiliates, of more than 10% (or 2!
in the case of a transfer by NBCU) of the adjustetstanding shares of the common stock, as detechimaccordance with the amended
restated shareholder agreement.

The standstill period will terminate on the eatliés occur of (i) the teyear anniversary of the amended and restated siides
agreement, (ii) our entering into an agreement wwild result in a "change in control" (subjectrénstatement), (iii) an actual "change
control" (subject to reinstatement), (iv) a thpdrty tender offer (subject to reinstatement), \Qrs(x months after GE Equity can no lon
designate any nominees to our board of directmbowing the expiration of the standstill periodrpuant to clause (i) above and two yea
the case of clause (v) above, GE Equity and NBEChé#neficial ownership position may not exceed @0 our adjusted outstanding share
common stock, except pursuant to issuances oriegsrof any warrants or pursuant to a 100% tenffier for our company.

Registration Rights Agreement

On February 25, 2009, we entered into an amendddrestated registration rights agreement providiiyy Equity, NBCU and the
affiliates and any transferees and assigns, areggtg of four demand registrations and unlimiteghpback registration rights. In additic
NBCU was subsequently granted one additional demegidtration right pursuant to the second amendmithe NBCU Trademark Licen
Agreement.

E. Marketing and Merchandising

Television and Internet Retailing

Our television and internet revenues are geneffabed sales of merchandise and services offeredugir@ur "Watch & Shop Anytim
Anywhere" initiative, which includes cable and ##tetelevision, online at www.shopnbc.com, moldlevices and social media channels.
television home shopping business utilizes livewision 24 hours a day, seven days a week, toecegainteractive and entertaining atmosp
to bring to life and demonstrate our merchandisa: €istomers are primarily women between the a§&5@and 65, married, with avere
annual household incomes of $70,000 or more. We laésve a strong presence of male customers ofasirage and income range. ¢
customers make purchases based on our unique psodumlity merchandise and value. We are continugdtimizing and adjusting o
product mix to include a more diversified produss@tment, which we believe will grow our new amtivee customer base and retain re
customers. We develop our programming schedule pviduct categories that appeal to specific vieavet customer profiles targeting day
week and times of day they are most likely to mwig our network. We feature announced and unamrexlipromotions to drive interest i
incremental sales, including "TodayTop Value," a sales program that features oneiapaffer every day. In addition, we also featangjol
and special promotional events and inventory-cleaaales during different times of the year.

We continually introduce new products that are lgasicessible to customers via our television,refnd mobile platforms. Invent
sources include manufacturers, wholesalers, digtiib and importers. We intend to continue to dgveind promote private label merchant
which generally have higher margins than brandedthaadise, across multiple product categories.
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ShopNBC Private Label Consumer Credit Card Program

Our private label consumer credit card program (Hregram") is made available to all qualified comers for the financing of purcha
of products from ShopNBC. The Program provides mlmer of benefits to customers including deferrdtingi options and free or reduc
shipping promotions throughout the year. Duringdls2012 and 2011 customer use of the private label consumer cieadil accounted f
approximately 17% and 15%f our television and internet sales, respectivéiye believe that the use of the ShopNBC credit darther:
customer loyalty and reduces our overall creditl éae expense.

Purchasing Terms

We obtain products for our multichannel electrorgtailing businesses from domestic and foreign rfeerturers and/or their supplit
and are often able to make purchases on favoraiest based on the volume of products purchasedldr Some of our purchasi
arrangements with our vendors include inventoryngethat allow for return privileges for a portiof the order or stock balancing. \
generally do not have lortgrm commitments with our vendors, and a varietgairces are available for each category of merdibarsolc
During fiscal 2012 , products purchased from onedee accounted for approximately 1996our consolidated net sales. We believe the
could find alternative sources for this vendoproducts if this vendor ceased supplying mercisandiowever, the unanticipated loss of
large supplier could impact our sales and earnings.

F. Order Entry, Fulfilment and Customer Service

Our products are available for purchase via frele telephone numbers or on our website. We mairagreements with We
Corporation, as well as other call surge providersupport us with telephone order-entry operatois automated ordgrocessing services
the taking of customer orders. We process ordelts evir own homésased phone agents and with agents at our BowliegrG Kentucky ar
Eden Prairie, Minnesota facilities. At the prestme, we do not utilize any call center servicesduhoverseas.

We own a 262,000square foot distribution facility in Bowling GreeKentucky, which we use for the fulfilment of atierchandis
purchased and sold by us and for certain call caperations. We also lease approximately 230,8G0are feet of additional warehouse s
in Bowling Green, Kentucky under a monthstmnth lease agreement, which allows for additiaagacity of up to a total of approximat
400,000 square feet, if needed.

The majority of customer purchases are paid byitcoedlebit cards. As discussed above, we mairdginivate label credit card progr
using the ShopNBC name. Purchases and instalinmanges made with the ShopNBC private label creatid @re nomecourse to us. We al
utilize an installment payment program called V&ag, which entitles customers to pay by credit darccertain merchandise in two or m
equal monthly installments. The percentage of @irsales generated utilizing our ValuePay paymesgram over the past three fiscal y«
ranged from 70% to 79%. It does, however, createedit collection risk for us from the potentiahbility to collect outstanding balances.
intend to continue to sell merchandise using thii&ay program due to its significant promotiorellie.

We maintain a product inventory, which consistsnauily of consumer merchandise held for resale. riogluct inventory is valued at 1
lower of average cost or realizable value. As dirbary 2, 2013 and January 28, 2012 , we had iovettalances of $37.2 million arg#3.t
million , respectively. We do not have any mateaiaounts of backlog orders.

Merchandise is shipped to customers by the UnitateS Postal Service, UPS, Federal Express or mthegnized carriers. We also h
arrangements with certain vendors who ship merdkardirectly to our customers after an approvedorner order is processed.

We perform our customer service functions primaatyour Eden Prairie, Minnesota and Bowling Grdéentucky facilities as well :
with our own home-based phone agents.

Our return policy allows a standard 30-day refurdqu from the date of invoice for all customer ghases. Our return rate was 2%
fiscal 2012 compared to 23% in fiscal 201We continue to monitor our return rates in arortffo keep our overall return rates in line
commensurate with our current product sales mixandaverage selling price levels.

G. Competition

The direct marketing and multichannel retail bussgs are highly competitive. With our customersilog to "watch and shop anytin
anywhere," we compete for the attention of custeméth other television home shopping andogamerce retailers; infomercial compan
other types of consumer retail businesses, inctudiaditional "brick and mortar" department stordiscount stores, warehouse stores
specialty stores; catalog and mail order retadecs other direct sellers.
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Our direct competitors within the industry inclu@®C Network, Inc. and HSN, Inc., both of which argstantially larger than we are
terms of annual revenues and customers, and whoggamming is carried more broadly to U.S. housgthidhan our programming. T
American Collectibles Network, which operates Jewdlelevision, also competes with us for customerthe jewelry category. In additic
there are a number of smaller niche players anmtugtain the television home shopping arena whopmimwith us. We believe that our m:
competitors incur cable and satellite distributfeas representing a significantly lower percentafytheir sales attributable to their televis
programming than do we; and that their fee arrareggsnare substantially on a commission basis (nesoases with minimum guarante
rather than on the predominantly fixedst basis that we currently have. At our curratésslevel, our distribution costs as a percentddetal
consolidated net sales are higher than our conpetilowever, one of our key strategies is to neambur distribution fixed cost structure
order to leverage our profitability as we grow business.

The eeommerce sector also is highly competitive, andaweein direct competition with numerous other intdrretailers, many of whc
are larger, better financed and have a broadeommgstbase than we do.

We anticipate continuing competition for viewerslarustomers, for experienced home shopping persofamedistribution agreemer
with cable and satellite systems and for vendoi$ suppliers —not only from television home shopping companiag, dso from othe
companies that seek to enter the home shoppingnaéechet retail industries, including telecommunicas and cable companies, televis
networks, and other established retailers. We Yelibat our ability to be successful in the muktichel retailing industry will be dependent
a number of key factors, including expanding ougjitdl footprint to meet our customers' "watch ahdgsanytime, anywhere" needs, increa
the number of customers who purchase products imand increasing the dollar value of sales paoomesr from our existing customer base.

H. Federal Regulation

The cable television industry and the broadcagtidgstry in general are subject to extensive reaguaby the Federal Communicatic
Commission, or FCC. The following does not purgorbe a complete summary of all of the provisiohthe Communications Act of 1934,
amended, known as the Communications Act; the Calglevision Consumer Protection Act of 1992, knoes the Cable Act; tl
Telecommunications Act of 1996, known as the Tealemmnications Act; or other laws and FCC rules olicpes that may affect o
operations.

Cable Television

The cable industry is regulated by the FCC underGhble Act and FCC regulations promulgated thateyras well as by state or lo
governments with respect to certain franchisingtenat

Must Carry. In general, the FCC's "must carry" rules enfitlepower television stations to mandatory careay the primary video al
programrelated material in their signals, at no chargealtaecable and direct broadcast satellite homeatést within each station's broad:
market provided that the signal is of adequatengtie and, in the case of cable systems, the oaust signals occupy no more than dhid
of the cable system's capacity. Prior to June 2012 cable must carry rules required cable systenmsake must carry signals "viewable"
all sets connected to their systems, whether théssanalog or digital. Thiportion of the rules "sunset" in June 2012. The FdeClined t
extend that rule and instead allowed cable systerpsovide must carry signals in digital formatyrdo long as they provide sefp converte
to subscribers at "reasonable” cost. An appeabiecis pending. We do not believe the revised alglity rule will have a material impact
our business as our programming distributed watwo full-power broadcast television stations in Boston asattte would still be viewahb
by a vast majority of the cable homes in those etatk

Broadcast Television

General. Our acquisition and operation of television stasi is subject to FCC regulation under the Comnatiuins Act. Th
Communications Act prohibits the operation of tid&n broadcasting stations except under a licesseed by the FCC. The statute empo
the FCC, among other things, to issue, revoke andifyn broadcasting licenses, adopt regulations doryc out the provisions of t
Communications Act and impose penalties for violatof such regulations. Such regulations imposéaireobligations with respect to 1
programming and operation of television stations|uding requirements for carriage of childeeducational and informational programm
programming responsive to local problems, needsrardests, advertising upon request by legallylified candidates for federal office, clos
captioning, and other matters. In addition, FCCesulprohibit foreign governments, representativesfaseign governments, aliel
representatives of aliens and corporations andh@astips organized under the laws of a foreigrondtiom holding broadcast licenses. Ali
may own up to 20% of the capital stock of a licenserporation, or generally up to 25% of a U.Spoaoation, which, in turn, has a controll
interest in a licensee.

Full Power Television StationsIn April 2003, one of our wholly owned subsidesiacquired a full power television station serimg
Boston, Massachusetts market. On April 11, 2008 RGC granted our application for renewal of tlaish’s license.
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We also distribute our programming via leased aggion a full power television station in SeafiMgshington. Our Boston market stat
WWDP TV, currently broadcasts in a digital formatahannel 10, perceived by viewers as channehé6stiation's previous analog channel.

The FCC has begun proceedings to consider reclgipartions of the electroragnetic spectrum now used for broadcast tele\
service with the goal of reallocating some of théctrum for wireless broadband service. The FCCphaposed to use "incentive auctic
that would permit broadcasters on a voluntary b@siagree to give up some or all of their spectand obtain a portion of the proceeds
FCC would collect from auctioning that spectrumeTHCC would also consider "repacking” broadcastvision channels to clear spectr
Congress passed legislation in February 2012 aathgra single incentive auction of television gjpem and an associated repacking of
television band. That legislation requires the RGMake a reasonable effort to preserve statimv&rage areas in the repacking process
legislation also allows two stations to agree tarstone channel and allow the remaining channbkteeturned to the FCC for auction. -
legislation allows $1.75 billion for the expensdgaepacking. The FCC has started a proceeding optadiles to implement the legislation
the Northeast portion of the United States, the Gt adopt agreement with Canada to permit reailme of some television spectrum
channel changes for remaining stations. The vdlpauxicular television channels, sufficiency oétamounts set aside for reallocation expe
and the response from Canadian authorities to lsseaes are currently unknown.

Telephone Companies’ Provision of Programming Sees

The Telecommunications Act eliminated the previstetutory restriction forbidding the common ownépsbf a cable system a
telephone company. Verizon, AT&T, and a numbertbko local telephone companies are planning toigeoar are providing video servic
through fiber to the home or fiber to the neighloaxth technologies, while other local exchange cerrdee using video digital subscriber I
technology, known as VDSL, to deliver video prognaimg, highspeed internet access and telephone service oigtingxcopper telepho
lines or new fiber optic lines. In March 2007 andovwmber 2007, the FCC released orders designettdandine entry by carriers
preempting the imposition by local franchising auities of unreasonable conditions on entry. A nanmtif parties have requested that the
reconsider various aspects of the March 2007 aneeiMber 2007 orders, and those requests remainmendlinumber of states have ¢
enacted franchise reform legislation to make itexdsr telephone companies to provide video sewiBoth Verizon and AT&T have deplo
video delivery systems in many markets across dmitcy, and other telephone companies are alsoiegtée market as a result of these |
and state decisions. No prediction can be made their further deployment or success in attractingtomers.

Regulations Affecting Multiple Payment Transactions

The 2005 antitrust settlement between MasterCal8Avand approximately 8 million retail merchantsseal certain issues for retail
who accept telephonic orders that involve consuosgr of debit cards for multiple or continuity payrtse A condition of the settleme
agreement provided that the code numbers or otle@nmof distinguishing between debit and creditixdée made available to merchant
VISA and MasterCard. Under Federal Reserve Boagiilations, this may require merchants to obtainsaarers’ written consent fc
preauthorized transfers where the merchant is athatehe method of payment is a debit card as sggbto a credit card. We believe that ¢
cards are currently being offered through Visa dabtercard as the payment vehicle in approximad@%o of our transactions. Effecti
February 9, 2006, the Federal Reserve Board amdadgdage in its official commentary to Regulat®iy removing an express prohibit
on the use of taped verbal authorization from coress as evidence of a written authorization forppses of the regulation. There can b
assurance that compliance with the authorizati@tguiures under this regulation will not adversdfgc the customer experience in plac
orders or adversely affect sales.

Fair and Accurate Credit Transactions Act

In an attempt to combat identity theft, in 2003n@@ss enacted the Fair and Accurate Credit TréngsacAct ("FACTA"). In 2008, th
federal bank regulatory agencies and the FededelrCommission finalized a joint rule implementiR§CTA. Compliance with the ru
became mandatory on June 1, 2010. FACTA requireypaaies to take steps to prevent, detect and ratigp@ occurrences of identity th
Pursuant to FACTA, covered companies are requioedamong other things, develop an identity the&vpntion program to identify a
respond appropriately to "red flags" that may hiidative of possible identity theft. We adopted BANCTA policy on May 14, 2009.

I. Seasonality and Economic Sensitivity

Our business is subject to seasonal fluctuatioth thie highest sales activity normally occurringidg our fourth fiscal quarter of t
year, namely November through January. Our busiiesdso sensitive to general economic conditiond husiness conditions affect
consumer spending. Additionally, our televisioniande (and therefore sales revenue) can be signtfic
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impacted by major world or domestic events whic¢haat television viewership and divert audienceraton away from our programming.

J. Employees

At February 2, 2013 , we had approximately 1,8@tployees, the majority of whom are employed irntaugr service, order fulfillme
and television production. Approximately 20% of @mnployees work pattme. We are not a party to any collective bargajragreement wi
respect to our employees.

K. Executive Officers of the Registrant

Set forth below are the names, ages and titlelssopérsons serving as our executive officers.

Name Age Position(s) Held

Keith R. Stewart 49 Chief Executive Officer and Director

Robert Ayd 64  President

William McGrath 55  Executive Vice President — Chief Financial Officer

Carol Steinberg 53  Chief Operating Officer

Annette Repasch 47  Chief Merchandising Officer

Jean-Guillaume Sabatier 43  Senior Vice President — Sales & Product Plannind) Rrogramming

Teresa Dery 46  Senior Vice President — General Counsel

Nancy Kunkle 49  Senior Vice President — Customer Experience & BessrProcess
Engineering

Michael A. Murray 54  Senior Vice President — Operations

Nicholas J. Vassallo 49  Vice President — Corporate Controller

Beth K. McCartan 43  Vice President — Financial Planning & Analysis

Ashish G. Akolkar 40  Vice President — IT Operations

Keith R. Stewartvas named our President and Chief Executive Officelanuary 2009 after having joined ShopNBC asiBeat an
Chief Operating Officer in August 2008. Mr. Steweatired from QVC in July 2007 where he served ttggority of his retail career, mc
recently as Vice President — Merchandising of QWUSA), and Vice President -Global Sourcing of QVC (USA) from April 2004 to &
2007. Previously, Mr. Stewart was General Manaf€y\¢éC’s German business unit from 1998 to March 2004.S¢ewart first joined QVC i
a consumer electronics buyer in 1992 and througderées of progressively responsible positions dmer expertise in all areas of
shopping, including merchandising, programmingealistribution, strategic planning, organizatiodalelopment, and international sourci

Robert Aydoined ShopNBC in February 2010 as President, eedtng Merchandising, Planning, Programming, BrostdGperation:
and OnAir Talent. Mr. Ayd brings an extensive backgrownl a track record of success to ShopNBC, includiagutive leadership roles
QVC and Macys. Most recently, Mr. Ayd served as Executive ViRresident and Chief Merchandising Officer at QVGSA) from 2006 t
2008. During his tenure at QVC, Mr. Ayd also sena&sl Senior Vice President, Design Development &b@loSourcing and Brai
Development from 2005 to 2006, and Senior Vice idezg of Jewelry and Fashion from 2000 to 200400 joining QVC in 1995 as Vi
President of Fashion, Mr. Ayd held numerous exgeuadership positions for Macy’s, culminating twenior Vice President in Women’
Sportswear from 1991 to 1995. Mr. Ayd began higeaat Macy’s in 1975 as a buyer of handbags, bedywand footwear.

William McGrathwas named Senior Vice President and Chief Fina@ffiter in August 2010 after having joined ShopNBCJanuar
2010 as Vice President of Quality Assurance anddgoaamed interim Chief Financial Officer in Febyu010. Mr. McGrath served as V
President Global Sourcing Operations and Finand®@\&E in 2008. During his tenure at QVC, he alsovedras Vice President Corpor
Quality Assurance and Quality Control from 1999 008; Vice President Merchandise
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Operations and Inventory Control from 1995-1999¢eéV/iPresident Market Research and Sales Analysis 1892 —1995; and Directc
Financial Planning and Analysis from 192092. Prior to QVC, Mr. McGrath held a variety eftlership positions at Subaru of America 1
1983-1990 and Arthur Andersen from 197983. He holds an MBA in finance from Drexel Unisiey and a BS in Accounting from Se
Joseph’s University.

Carol Steinbergwas named Chief Operating Officer in October 20RBeviously she served as Executive Vice Presidetgrnet
Marketing & Human Resources from June 2011 afteimigajoined ShopNBC as Senior Vice PresidenC@nmerce, Marketing and Busin
Development in June 2009. Previously, she was Piasident at David’ Bridal from September 2006 to June 2009 whereespanded i
internet presence by designing and implementingketeng and merchandising strategies that drovdidraf store and online. Prior to tl
position, Ms. Steinberg spent 12 years at QVC frarty 1994 to September 2006, most recently havergesl as the Director of Onli
Marketing and Business Development.

Annette Repasclvas named Chief Merchandising Officer in OctobetR@fter having joined ShopNBC as Vice Presidergatlines it
May 2011. Previously, she served as Senior Vicsieat and General Merchandise Manager of Stagessfoom February 2008 to Af
2011. Prior to this position, she was Vice Predidend General Merchandise Manager at QVC (USA) fdamuary 2001 to February 2008.
Repasch has also held senior merchandising rolestim specialty and departments stores, includiagne Bryant, Saks and Bdren. Shi
holds a business degree from the Philadelphia ol Art.

Jean-Guillaume Sabatigoined ShopNBC as Senior Vice President, Sales éd&et Planning and Programming in November 2
During fiscal 2012, Mr. Sabatier also led a spepiajects initiative in the planning area. Mr. Sédraserved as Director, Sales and Pra
Planning for QVC, Inc., from July 2007 to Octob@&O08. Prior to that time, Mr. Sabatier held varipasitions in QVCS German business ul
including Director, Programming and Planning froatyJ2003 to July 2007. He began his QVC career sales and product planner in J
1997.

Teresa Derywas appointed Senior Vice President and Generah€zun June 2011 and Corporate Secretary in Feba@d1. Ms. Der
has 18 years of corporate law experience and joBtempNBC in 2004 as Senior Corporate Counsel. Sk appointed Associate Gen
Counsel in 2006. Prior to joining ShopNBC, she edras Corporate Counsel and Corporate SecretaxeiPerceptions between 2000
2004. Previously, she served as Corporate Secratatyice President of Finance and Legal for nafisastaurant franchise 1 Potato 2 f
1993 to 2000.

Nancy Kunklewas appointed Senior Vice President of CustomereB&pce and Business Process Engineering in Fgbadr3. Sh
joined ShopNBC in April 2011 as a strategic advised was later appointed Senior Vice Presidentusft@ner Experience in October 2C
Ms Kunkle has over 27 years of experience in pr@eagineering and multichannel customer experiencaagement. Prior to joinit
ShopNBC, Ms. Kunkle was Program Manager, LogisdicEhe Boeing Company from April 2010 to April 20Fkior to that, Ms. Kunkle spe
over a decade at QVC where she served in multgdedrship roles within commerce, customer advoeaxy customer service includ
Director, Customer Advocacy from April, 2008 to Mar2010 and Director, Commerce Project Managentem f~ebruary 2006 to Mar
2008. Ms. Kunkle began her career in 1985 at TheirgpCompany, providing program management for lyuplpain processes and proc
development.

Michael A. Murraywas named Senior Vice President of Operations piedeber 2009 after having joined ShopNBC as Viasident ¢
Operations in May 2004. Mr. Murray has over 25 geaf operations and business management experi@mu®. to joining ShopNB(
Mr. Murray was Senior Vice President of Operatitorshe Fingerhut Companies and Federated DepattBteres direct to consumer divisi
primarily from May 1991 to October 2002. While ahgerhut, Mr. Murray also led FBSI operations, Frgut's 3rd party direct to consun
arm serving Walmart.com, Intuit, Legi’ Wet Seal and others. Mr. Murray has held exeeuéadership positions in various direct to consi
and retail companies including Merrill Corporatidtiecberman Enterprises, and Associated Wholesateds. Mr. Murray began his car
with John Deere as an Industrial Engineer.

Nicholas J. Vassallbas served as Vice President and Corporate Caertisiice 2000. He first joined ShopNBC as directofinancia
reporting in October 1996. During that time he disal responsibility for direanail acquisitions and other corporate business |dpween
ventures. Mr. Vassallo was named corporate coetral 1999 and the following year was promoted it® \president. Prior to ShopNBC,
served as corporate controller for Fourth Shift @ooation, a software development company. Mr. Viasdaegan his career with Arth
Anderson, LLP where he spent eight years in thailitgoractice group. Mr. Vassallo is a CPA and Ba@dBS in Accounting from Saint Jokn’
University in New York.

Beth K. McCartarhas served as Vice President Financial Planningné&lysis since 2006. She first joined ShopNBC asifiie Manag:
in January 2001. She was promoted to Finance Diréet2003 and to Vice President three years I&gor to ShopNBC, she worked for 1
Pillsbury Company in several finance positionsudahg Sr. Financial Analyst for Green Giant anddPesso brands and as a plant contr
She began her career with Pillsbury in February3198s. McCartan holds an MBA in finance from theilgmsity of Minnesota and h
undergraduate degrees in Finance, Marketing anéwding from The University of St. Thomas.

14




Table of Contents

Ashish G. Akolkahas served as Vice President of IT Operations sinoe 2007. Mr. Akolkar joined ShopNBC in NovemB600 an
has held director and managerial positions at SBdpMverseeing enterprise architecture, softwareeldgment, application suppori
maintenance and technology infrastructure functid®sor to joining ShopNBC, Mr. Akolkar served astexhnology consultant for El
applications while working for companies includingtbriefings.com and Sunflower Information Techiggds. Mr. Akolkar has an MBA
finance and BS in electronics engineering from Mantniversity, India.

L. Available Information

Our annual report on Form 10-K, quarterly reporsFmrm 10-Q and current reports on Forri{,8and amendments to these repor
applicable, are available, without charge, on awestor Relations website as soon as reasonabtyiqgable after they are filed electronici
with the Securities and Exchange Commission. Coplss are available, without charge, by contactimg General Counsel, ValueVis
Media, Inc., 6740 Shady Oak Road, Eden Prairie neéota 55344-3433.

Our investor relations website address is www.shomom/ir. Our goal is to maintain the investoatigins website as a way for inves
to easily find information about us, including pe®leases, announcements of investor conferemoasstor and analyst presentations
corporate governance. We also make available frebarge our quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, curreports on Form &, proxy statemen
and all amendments to these filings as soon asigabte after that material is electronically filadth or furnished to the SEC. The informai
found on our website is not part of this or anyeotteport we file with, or furnish to, the SEC.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

In addition to the general investment risks andsthtactors set forth throughout this document uditlg those set forth under the cap
"Cautionary Statement Concerning Forward-Lookintpfmation," the following risks should be considregarding our company.

We have a history of losses and a high fixed cos¢mting base and may not be able to achieve orntan profitable operations in th
future.

We experienced operating losses of approximate8/3tillion , $16.8 million and $15.5 million ifiscal 2012, fiscal 2011 and fisi
2010, respectively. We reported a net loss availelocommon shareholders of $27.7 million , $4®illion and $25.9 million irfiscal 2012
fiscal 2011 and fiscal 201,0respectively. There is no assurance that wehgilable to achieve or maintain profitable operationfuture fisce
years.

Our television home shopping business operatesantigh fixed cost base, primarily driven by fixisgs under distribution agreeme
with cable and direct-tbome satellite providers to carry our programmingorder to operate on a profitable basis, we meesth and mainta
sufficient annual sales revenues to cover our fiigd cost base and/or negotiate a reduction is ¢lost structure. If our sales levels are
sufficient to cover our operating expenses, oulitalio reduce operating expenses in the near teilfrbe limited by the fixed cost base. In t
case, our earnings, cash balance and growth pitsspedd be materially and adversely affected.

If we do not reverse our current trend of operatingsses, we could reduce our operating cash researto the point where we will n
have sufficient liquidity to meet the ongoing casbmmitments and obligations to continue operatingrdusiness.

As of February 2, 2013 , we had approximately $26ifion in unrestricted cash, with an addition&.3% million of restricted cash a
investments used to secure letters of credit. WWe&to use our cash to finance our working cap@lirements and to make necessary ci
expenditures in order to operate our businessafuhd any further operating losses. If we do meerse our current trend of operating los
we could reduce our operating cash resources tepdie where we would not be able to adequatelyd furorking capital requirements
necessary capital expenditures. In February 20&2seeured a $40 milliorevolving credit facility with PNC Bank, Nationals&ociation. Th
new facility bears an interest rate of LIBOR pl# and was used to fund the retirement of our $2Bomi11% term loan and to pay$i2.«
million deferred payment obligation to a television disttibn provider. We still have significant future mmitments for our cash, whi
primarily includes payments for cable and sateftitegram distribution obligations and the eventiggdayment of our new threesar cred
facility. Based on our current projections for &@013, we believe that our existing cash balances véllsbfficient to maintain liquidity -
fund our normal business operations over the neglve months. However, our amended and restataelsblder agreement with GE Eqt
and NBCU requires the consent of GE Equity in offderus to issue new equity securities and to inodebtedness above certain thresh
and there can be no assurance that we would rett@eonsent if we made a request. Furthermorenew credit facility includes certe
restrictions on our ability to incur additional debs well as restrictions on our ability to makatenial changes in the nature of our busit
both of which may be necessary in times of liqyidibnstraints. Therefore, there
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can be no assurance that, if required, we wouldhde to raise additional capital or reduce spendingave sufficient liquidity to meet c
ongoing cash commitments and obligations to comrtimperating our business.

Our inability to recruit and retain key employeesay adversely impact our ability to sustain growth.

Our continued growth is contingent, in part, on ability to retain and recruit employees that h#ve distinct skills necessary fo
business that demands knowledge of the generdl netlstry, merchandising and product sourcindeuision production, televised a
internetbased marketing and fulfillment. The marketplacedioch employees is very competitive and limitedr @rowth may be adverst
impacted if we are unable to attract and retaigehesy employees.

The failure to secure suitable placement for ourlgeision programming and the use of digital techiogly to expand the number
channels and services available on cable, direatdmicast satellite and internet protocol Thased video distribution systems could adver
affect our ability to attract and retain televisiomewers and could result in a decrease in revenue.

We are dependent upon our ability to compete fevision viewers. Effectively competing for teleios viewers is dependent, in part,
our ability to secure placement of our televisisagramming within a suitable programming tier atesirable channel position. The majorit
multi-video programming distributors now offer programghon a digital basis. While the growth of digitalbée and these other systems
over time make it possible for our programming éorbore widely distributed, there are several reksvell. The primary risks associated \
the growth of digital cable and alternative digpédtforms are demonstrated by the following:

« we could experience further declines in sales jgtadi tier subscriber because of the increasedbmimof channels offered on dig
systems competing for the same number of vieweatgtamhigher channel location we typically are gissd in digital tiers;

e more competitors may enter the marketplace asiadditchannel capacity is added;

e more programming options being available touieeving public in the form of new television netwerand time-shifted viewingd.g
, personal video recorders, video-on-demand, intimatelevision and streaming video over broadhatetnet connections).

Failure to adapt to these risks will result in lowevenue and may harm our results of operationsddition, failure to anticipate a
adapt to technological changes in a afftctive manner that meets customer demands anldiey industry standards will also reduce
revenue, harm our results of operations and firsmcindition and have a negative impact on ourrtass.

We may not be able to expand or could lose someusfexisting programming distribution if we cannategotiate profitable distributio
agreements.

We are seeking to continue to reduce the costsia$ed with our cable and satellite distributiorresgnents. However, while we w
able to achieve reductions in these costs beginnir@p08 and other reductions starting in 2013 atha loss in households, there can b
assurance that we will achieve comparable costctemhs in the future or that we will be able to ntain or grow our households on finan
terms that are profitable to us. It is possiblet the may need to reduce our programming distriloutio certain systems if we are unabl
obtain appropriate financial terms. Failure to ssstully renew agreements covering a material @ortf our existing cable and satel
households on acceptable financial and other teonkl adversely affect our future growth, saleereies and earnings unless we are al
arrange for alternative means of broadly distribgitbur television programming.

NBCU, Comcast and GE Equity have the ability to exsignificant influence over us and have the righd disapprove of certain actio
by us.

As a result of their equity ownership in our compaNBCU (and Comcast, as the owner of all of thenemn equity of NBCU) and C
Equity together are currently our largest sharedrsicand have the ability to exert significant iefige over actions requiring shareha
approval, including the election of directors, afilmp of equitybased compensation plans and approval of mergether significant corpora
events. Through the provisions in the amended aesidted shareholder agreement, NBCU (and Comaasiieanajority owner of NBCU) a
GE Equity also have the right to block us from makcertain actions that our Board of Directors rhigiherwise determine to be in the inter
of our other shareholders (as discussed in greftil under "Business — Strategic Relationship#dmended and Restated Sharehc
Agreement" above).

Expiration or termination of the NBCU trademark liense would require us to pursue a new branding stgy or we may choose
rebrand for other business reasons, and either rahding initiative may not be successful.

We have branded our television home shopping nétveoid internet site as ShopNBC and ShopNBC.conperively, under ¢
exclusive, worldwide licensing agreement with NBG&f the use of NBCU trademarks, service marks aachain names. The licer
agreement continues through January 2014. We doawet the right to automatic renewal and consetjuent
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we may be required to pursue a new branding strategie may choose to rebrand prior to its expirath January 2014. Such rebranding
not be as successful as the NBCU brand. NBCU asahe right to terminate the license prior toghd of the license term if (i) we were tc
in material breach of, default under or non-comqm@with the terms and conditions of our creditlifigc(unless the breach, default or non
compliance is cured within 90 days or consentedrtavaived by the lender or agent under the crexditlify), or (ii) if credit availability unde
the credit facility plus our unrestricted cash weoefall below $8 million. NBCU may also terminate the license under certghe
circumstances, including without limitation, in theent of a breach by us of the terms of the lieeagreement, upon certain changes of co
upon our inability to pay our debts as they becaime, or upon NBCL$ failure to own a certain percentage of our ontlitey capital stock ¢
a fully diluted basis (as discussed in greateridetaler "Business — Relationship with NBCU, Contcaisd GE Equity —NBCU Trademar
License Agreement" above). Rebranding our businestd result in material expenditures and the feilfg effects on our business (am
others): (a) incremental costs of rebranding, idiclg, but not limited to, reprinting all of our sigge, television and internet logos, and pote
challenges to our new brand, (b) engaging a mantxditim to assist with developing a new brand,if@ating a marketing campaign above
beyond our ordinary marketing to inform our custesnef our new branding, and (d) the potential lofsustomers who do not respc
favorably to the new brand. In the event theseceffen our business greatly exceed customary apelceed costs and expense or result |
extended loss of revenue, there could be a matatiarse impact on our business.

Our stock ownership is concentrated among a relativ small group of principal shareholders who haweibstantial control over u
including our directors and executive officers, armbuld delay or prevent a change in corporate caitr

GE Equity and NBCU (and Comcast, as the owner loffathe common equity of NBCU), together with thaffiliates, along with ot
directors and executive officers, beneficially oumthe aggregate, approximately 3@%our common stock. As a result, these sharehs
acting together, would have the ability to sigrafitly influence or control the outcome of mattenbraitted to our shareholders for appra
including the election of directors and any mergensolidation or sale of all or substantially @fllour assets. In addition, these sharehol
acting together, would have the ability to sigrdfitly influence or control the management and effaf our company. Accordingly, tl
concentration of ownership might harm the markétepof our common stock by:

» delaying, deferring or preventing a change in coafgcontro
« impeding a merger, consolidation, takeover or othesiness combination involving us
« discouraging a potential acquirer from making al&groffer or otherwise attempting to obtain conbobls

Competition in the general merchandise retailingduostry and particularly the live home shopping amdcommerce sectors could lin
our growth and reduce our profitability.

As a general merchandise retailer, we compete dosumers with other forms of retail businessesludiog other television hon
shopping and eemmerce retailers, infomercial companies, othpesyof consumer retail businesses, including fmawit "brick and mortal
department stores, discount stores, warehousessgpecialty stores, catalog and mail order retaded other direct sellers. In the compet
television home shopping sector, we compete withCQNetwork, Inc., HSN, Inc. and Jewelry Televisi@s, well as a number of sma
"niche" home shopping competitors. QVC Network,. laed HSN, Inc. both are substantially larger thanare in terms of annual revenues
customers, their programming is more broadly abtélao U.S. households than is our programming ianchany markets they have m
favorable channel locations than we have. The nieteretailing industry is also highly competitivejth numerous e&ommerce websit
competing in every product category we carry, iditoh to the websites operated by the other telesi home shopping companies. ~
competition in the internet retailing sector makemore challenging and expensive for us to attrast/ customers, retain existing custor
and maintain desired gross margin levels.

We may not be able to maintain our satellite see8dn certain situations, beyond our control, whiechay cause our programming to
off the air for a period of time and cause us toduar substantial additional costs.

Our programming is presently distributed to cabystams, full power television stations and sateliiish operators via a lea
communications satellite transponder. Satellitgisermay be interrupted due to a variety of circtamses beyond our control, such as sat
transponder failure, satellite fuel depletion, gowveental action, preemption by the satellite sengoovider, solar activity and service failt
Our satellite transponder agreement provides us pvigeemptible backyp service if satellite transmission is interruptedler certain conditior
In the event of a serious transmission interruptitrere backip service is not available, we may need to enternew arrangements, resuli
in substantial additional costs and the inabilityptoadcast our signal for some period of time.

The FCC could limit mustearry rights, which would impact distribution of auelevision home shopping programming and mightpair
the value of our Boston FCC license.

The FCC issued a public notice on May 4, 2007 regatihat it was updating the public record for aitjpet for reconsideration filed
1993 and still pending before the FCC. The petitiballenges the FCC’s prior determination to gthetsame mandatory
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cable carriage (or "must-carry") rights for TV bdeast stations carrying home shopping programntiagthe FCGs rules accord to other ~
stations. The time period for comments and repipments regarding the reconsideration closed in AugQ007, and we submitted comm:e
supporting the continuation of musdry rights for home shopping stations. If the F#€ides to change its prior determination and dvii
mustcarry rights for home shopping stations as a resfutis updating of the public record, we coulddour current carriage distribution
cable systems in two markets: Boston and Seatttéchacurrently constitute approximately 3.2 millidumll-time equivalent households,
FTE’s, receiving our programming. We own our Bostoeusion station and have a carriage contract withthird party Seattle televisi
station. In addition, if must-carry rights for honskopping stations are withdrawn, it may not besjds to replace these FT&'or
commercially reasonable terms and the carryingevaliuour Boston FCC license, which has an asseyingrvalue of $12.0 millioras o
February 2, 2013 , may become further impaired.

We may be subject to product liability claims fon-@ir misrepresentations or if people or propertiase harmed by products sold by us.

Products sold by us and representations relatéldete products may expose us to potential liabifidyn claims by purchasers of si
products, subject to our rights, in certain insemado seek indemnification against this liabilitpm the suppliers or manufacturers of
products. In addition to potential claims of pemslomjury, wrongful death or damage to personalpprty, the live unscripted nature of
television broadcasting may subject us to claimsnidrepresentation by our customers, the FedemdlelCommission and state attorr
general. We maintain, and have generally requinedmanufacturers and vendors of these productarty,groduct liability and errors a
omissions insurance. There can be no assurancevéhaldill maintain this coverage or obtain additibnaverage on acceptable terms, or
this insurance will provide adequate coverage afjaih potential claims or even be available wigkpect to any particular claim. There .
can be no assurance that our suppliers will coatioumaintain this insurance or that this covenaijebe adequate or available with respec
any particular claims. Product liability claims ¢duesult in a material adverse impact on our faahperformance. Our Company is ¢
subject to two FTC consent decrees, one issued® 2nd one issued in 2003; both have a duratioPOofears. They consist of clai
involving recordkeeping, compliance policies, artteration to detail on claim substantiation. Vioteis of these decrees could resu
significant civil fines and penalties.

Our ValuePay installment payment program could le&al significant unplanned credit losses if our criédoss rate was to material
deteriorate.

We utilize an installment payment program calledué®ay that entitles customers to purchase merisgehd generally pay for t
merchandise in two or more equal monthly installlme®ur ValuePay installment program is a key el@noé our promotional strategy. As
February 2, 2013 , we had approximately $92.6 amlue from customers under the ValuePay installmesgram. We maintain allowanc
for doubtful accounts for estimated losses resuitiom the inability of our customers to make regdipayments. There is no guarantee th:
will continue to experience the same credit loge that we have in the past or that losses willithin current provisions. A significa
increase in our credit losses above what we hage bgperiencing could result in a material advergmct on our financial performance.

Failure to comply with existing laws, rules and retations applicable to our company, or to obtain émaintain required licenses ar
rights, could subject us to additional liabilities.

We market and provide a broad range of merchantdiseigh multiple channels. As a result, we areexthjo a wide variety of statut
rules, regulations, policies and procedures inoarijurisdictions which are subject to change attane, including laws regarding consut
protection, privacy, the regulation of retailermgglly, the importation, sale and promotion of amandise and the operation of warehi
facilities, the ownership of television stationswasll as laws and regulations applicable to thermtt, electronic devises and busine
engaged in @ommerce. These laws and regulations may coveesubjatters including taxation, privacy, data pctta, pricing, conter
copyrights, distribution, mobile communicationsecttonic device certification, electronic contraetsd other communications, consu
protection, unencumbered internet access to ourcest, the design and operation of websites andhheacteristics and quality of our prodi
and services. Although we undertake to monitor gkarnn these laws, if these laws change withoukonawledge, or are violated by import
designers, vendors, manufacturers or distributorteer thirdparties we do business with, we could experientzydeén shipments and rece
of goods or be subject to fines or other penaliieer the controlling regulations, any of which lcbadversely affect our business. In addi
failure to comply with these laws and regulationsild result in fines and proceedings against ugidyernmental agencies and consun
which could adversely affect our business, financoamdition and results of operations. Moreoverfannrable changes in the laws, rules
regulations applicable to us could decrease derfanderchandise offered by us, increase costs abgst us to additional liabilities. Final
certain of these regulations impact our marketiffiores.
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We may be subject to claims by consumers and siatéfederal authorities for security breaches involg customer information, whic
could materially harm our reputation and business add significant administrative and compliance dds our operations.

In order to operate our business, which includeKiphel retail channels, we take orders for our praid from customers. This requires
to obtain personal information from these customectuding, but not limited to, credit card numherdthough we take reasonable |
appropriate security measures to protect custonfermation, there is still the risk that externalinternal security breaches could oc
including cyber incidents. In addition, new toofgladiscoveries by third parties in computer or camioations technology or software or of
developments may facilitate or result in a futuoenpromise or breach of our computer systems. Sanipromises or breaches could rest
data loss and/or identity theft leading to sigmifit liability or costs to us from consumer lawsuits monetary redress, state and fec
authorities for fines and penalties, and could #sal to interruptions in our operations and negapiublicity causing damage to our repute
and limiting customers’ willingness to purchasedarcts from us. Theft of credit card numbers of comesrs could result in multiillion dollar
fines and consumer settlement costs, FTC audiirageants, and significant internal administrativsts.

In addition to possible claims for security breairesolving customer information, the secure prsogg maintenance and transmis:
of customer information is critical to our operatsoand business strategy, and we devote signifiemtdurces to protecting our custo
information. The expenses associated with complwyiith a patchwork of state laws imposing differisgcurity requirements depending on
residence of our customers could reduce our operatiargins. As mentioned above, there have beaimoang efforts to increase the legal
regulatory obligations and restrictions on compsamienducting commerce, primarily in the areas whtian, consumer privacy and protec
of consumer personal information and we may hawetmte significant resources to information seguri

Nearly all of our sales are paid for by customersing credit or debit cards and the increasingly ghtened Payment Card Indust
("PCI") standards regarding the storage and secuyibf customer information could potentially impaour ability to accept card brands.

Nearly all of ShopNBG customers pay for purchases via a credit or aalpit. Credit and debit card brand issuers contiaueighte
PCI standards that are applicable to all merchahts accept these cards. These standards primauitgip to the processes and procedure
secure storage of customer data. By virtue of tleme of our overall credit card transactions, SBE is a Level 1 merchant which requ
the annual completion of a formal Record of Compli&a (ROC) by a Qualified Security Assessor. Faitereomply with PCI standards,
required by card issuers, could result in card tfames and/or the possible inability for us toeguica card brand. Our inability to accept or
all card brands could materially affect sales megative manner. ShopNBC received an approved RD&ugust 11, 2012.

We depend on relationships with humerous domestid goreign manufacturers and suppliers; a decrease product quality or at
increase in product cost, or the unanticipated lasfsour larger suppliers, could impact our sales.

We procure merchandise from numerous domestic amigh manufacturers and suppliers generally putsteashortterm contracts ar
purchase orders. Our ability to identify and estdiblelationships with these parties, as well aesg quality merchandise in a timely
efficient manner on acceptable terms and at ackkptosts, can be challenging. We depend on thHéayabf these parties in the U.S. ¢
abroad to timely produce and deliver goods thattrapelicable quality standards, which is impactgdabnumber of factors not within 1
control of these parties, such as political or fficial instability, trade restrictions, tariffs, cency exchange rates and transport capacit
costs, among others, and to deliver products tlet or exceed our customers’ expectations.

Our failure to identify new vendors and manufaatsirenaintain relationships with a significant numbod existing vendors ai
manufacturers and/or access quality merchandisetimely and efficient manner could cause us tosnsisstomer delivery dates or de
scheduled promotions, which would result in théufai to meet customer expectations and could ceustemers to cancel orders or cause
be unable to source merchandise in sufficient desitwhich could result in lost sales.

It is possible that one or more of our larger sigvplcould experience financial difficulties, indlag bankruptcy, or otherwise co
determine to cease doing business with us. Duigaalf 2012 , products purchased from one vendoowatted for approximately 19%f our
consolidated net sales. The unanticipated losshisf dupplier or any other large supplier could iotpaur sales and earnings. We
periodically experienced the loss of a major veratwd if a number of our larger vendors ceased dbirginess with us, this could materi
and adversely impact our sales and profitability.

Many of our key functions are concentrated in a gile location, and a natural disaster could serioysimpact our ability to operate.

Our television broadcast studios, internet openatidT systems, merchandising team, inventory obrslystems, executive offices ¢
finance/accounting functions, among others, arérakred in our adjacent offices at 6740 and 662tady Oak Road
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in Eden Prairie, Minnesota. In addition, our onljfifiment and distribution facility is centralizeat a location in Bowling Green, Kentucky
natural disaster, such as a tornado, could seyi@istupt our ability to continue or resume normpérations for some period of time. While
have certain business continuity plans in placeassurances can be given as to how quickly we woeldble to resume operations and
long it may take to return to normal operations. 8ald incur substantial financial losses above lzaybnd what may be covered by applic
insurance policies, and may experience a lossstbmers, vendors and employees during the recqesigd.

We could be subject to additional sales tax coliegtobligations and claims for uncollected amounts.

Over the past five years, a number of states hdoptad legislation that would require outstéte retailers to collect and remit sales
on transactions originating on the internet or byeo remote means such as home shopping, inforhamihcatalog distribution. These r
laws seek to assert indirect physical "nexus" ley dit-of-state retailer based on either the presémd¢he state of e-commerce "cliteu”
affiliates who are paid by the retailer to direat@mmerce traffic to the retailer through independeebsites or by the presence in the sta
companies with which the out-state retailer shares common ownership. Theseadasvbeing challenged by internet and other reriede
federal constitutional grounds, but court challendmve to date been largely unsuccessful. We a@iljn monitor this legislation an
depending upon our facts in the state, have efthgistered to collect tax (such as in New York, tRa@Zarolina, Colorado, and Pennsylvanie
have confirmed that we have no direct or indirdgtgical relationships with the state at the timehsiegislation becomes effective. Several
state legislatures are introducing similar legislaeach year, and federal legislation (which waelguire nationwide collection from all of
customers) has also been introduced in the fedtyate and Senate. If this trend continues andaiws bre upheld after legal challenges
could be required to collect additional state avmhl taxes in many additional jurisdictions. Addisgjes tax to our internet transactions ¢
negatively impact consumer demand, create a cotivyeetisadvantage (if all retailers are not equattpacted), and create an additional cc
administrative burden of complying with the colieat laws of multiple jurisdictions. While we beliewe comply with current state sales
regulations, a successful assertion by one or matates requiring us to collect taxes where we dodoeoso could result in substantial
liabilities, including for past sales, as well &nplties and interest.

We place a significant reliance on technology andfarmation management tools and operational applizas to run our existing
businesses, the failure of which could adverselygt our operations.

Our businesses are dependent, in part, on the fusepbisticated technology, some of which is predido us by third parties. The
technologies include, but are not necessarily &chito, satellite based transmission of our programgnuse of the internet and other mo
commerce devises in relation to our lorve business, new digital technology used to managd supplement our television broac
operations, the age of our legacy operational agfiins to distribute product to our customers amtwork of complex computer hardw
and software to manage an ever increasing neadfformation and information management tools. Taikufe of any of these legacy syste
or operational infrastructure elements, technolggie our inability to have this technology suppdrtupdated, expanded or integrated into
business processes or other technologies, couldrsely impact our operations. Although we have, whpessible, developed alternai
sources of technology and built redundancy into @amputer networks and tools, there can be no assarthat these efforts to date we
protect us against all potential issues or disasteurrences related to the loss of any such tdaeies or their use.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

None.

Item 2. Properties

We own two commercial buildings occupying approxiefia 209,000 square feet in Eden Prairie, Minnegatauburb of Minneapolit
These buildings are used for office space inclugixecutive offices, television studios, broadcastlities and administrative offices. We ow
262,000 square foot distribution facility on a-34re parcel of land in Bowling Green, Kentucky, ethis currently pledged as collateral ur
our bank credit facility. We also lease approximha30,000 square feet of additional warehouse space in Bow@reen, Kentucky unde
month-to-month lease agreement, which allows fatitamhal capacity of up to a total of approximatetp0,000square feet, if neede
Additionally, we rent transmitter site and studications in Boston, Massachusetts for our full powgkevision station.

We believe that our existing facilities are adeguatmeet our current needs and that suitableiadditalternative space will be availa
as needed to accommodate expansion of operations.
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Item 3. Legal Proceedings

We are involved from time to time in various claiarsd lawsuits in the ordinary course of businesshé opinion of management,
claims and suits individually and in the aggregailenot have a material adverse effect on our afiens or consolidated financial statements.

In the third quarter of fiscal 2009, the U.S. Cusscand Border Protection agency commenced an igaéish into an undervaluation
corresponding underpayment of the customs duty dweshe of the Company's vendors relating to aqadar shipment of goods to us. Afte
lengthy investigation, the vendor was criminalhagded and recently pleaded guilty in federal ctursing fraudulent invoices to defraud U
Customs of duties. After the vendor refused a regt® indemnify the Company for its risk, in Decami2009, we commenced litigat
against the vendor in the U.S. District Court ofnkiesota for breach of contract. The vendor thexl flounterclaims for payments it clair
were owed by us. The case has been stayed by tine co

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures

Not Applicable.
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PART Il

Item 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Relaed Shareholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Edfiy Securities

Market Information for Common Stock

Our common stock is traded on the Nasdag Globak&tamder the symbol "VVTV." The following tabletsdorth the range of high a
low sales prices of our common stock as quotedhbyNasdaqg Global Market for the periods indicated.

High Low

Fiscal 2012

First Quarter $ 25¢ % 1.5¢

Second Quarter 2.55 1.48

Third Quarter 2.83 1.65

Fourth Quarter 2.83 1.62
Fiscal 2011

First Quarter $ 767 % 5.0C

Second Quarter 8.7: 5.8t

Third Quarter 7.74 1.91

Fourth Quarter 3.37 1.45
Holders

As of March 14, 2013, we had approximately 820 camrshareholders of record.

Dividends

We have never declared or paid any dividends veigipect to our common stock. Any future determimaltip us to pay cash dividends
our common stock will be at the discretion of ooafdl of directors and will be dependent upon osults of operations, financial conditi
any contractual restrictions then existing and iofhetors deemed relevant at the time by the bowirectors. We currently expect to ret
our earnings for the development and expansionuofbwisiness and do not anticipate paying cash eiivd on the common stock in
foreseeable future.

Pursuant to the amended and restated shareholdmmagnt with GE Equity and NBCU, we are prohibifiean paying dividends on o
common stock without GE Equity’prior consent. We are further restricted fromipgydividends on our common stock by our bank ¢
facility.

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

As of February 2, 2013, all authorizations forugghase programs have expired and there were noctegses made during fiscal 2012.

Stock Performance Graph

The graph below compares the cumulative freer total return to our shareholders (based omegfgiion or depreciation of the mar
price of our common stock) on an indexed basis \#jta broad equity market index and (ii) two pshkd industry indices. The presenta
compares the common stock price in the period fRgbruary 2, 2008 to February 2, 20tt3the Nasdaq Composite Index, the S&P
Retailing Index and the Morningstar Specialty Rdtadex. The cumulative return is calculated assgran investment of $100 dtebruary 2
2008, and reinvestment of all dividends. You should notsider shareholder return over the indicatedogeto be indicative of futu
shareholder returns.
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COMPARISON OF 5 YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN
Among ValueVision Media, Inc., The Nasdag Compolitiex,
S&P 500 Retailing Index and the Morningstar SpégiRketail Index
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Value Vision Media. Inc. —— NASDAQ Composite-Total Returns

—@— S&P 500 Retailing Index —W— Morningstar Specialty Retail Index

ASSUMES $100 INVESTED ON FEBRUARY 2, 2008
ASSUMES DIVIDENDS REINVESTED
FISCAL YEAR ENDING FEBRUARY 2, 2013

February 2, January 31, January 30, January 29, January 28, February 2,

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
ValueVision Media, Inc. $ 100.0(| $ 40¢| $ 67.21| $ 105.2:( $ 2512 $ 45.3¢
NASDAQ Composite Index $ 100.0(| $ 61.71| $ 90.6¢| $ 1144¢| $ 121.27| $ 138.6:
S&P 500 Retailing Index $ 100.0(| $ 62.2¢| $ 96.8¢| $ 123.4: | $ 140.27| $ 178.5¢
Morningstar Specialty Retail Index $ 100.0(| $ 59.711 $ 102.37| $ 1352f| $ 1438 $ 1859

Equity Compensation Plan Information

The following table provides information as of Radmy 2, 2013 for our compensation plans under whégturities may be issued:

Number of Securities to be
Issued Upon Exercise of
Options, Warrants and

Weighted-Average
Exercise Price of
Outstanding Options,

Number of Securities
Remaining Available for
Future Issuance under

Plan Category Rights Warrants and Rights Equity Compensation Plans

Equity Compensation Plans Approved

by Security Holders 5,768,00! $5.08 386,000 (1)

Equity Compensation Plans Not

Approved by Security Holders (2) 525,000 (2) $4.12 —
Total 6,293,00! $3.96 386,00(

(1) Includes securities available for future issuanoden shareholder approved compensation plans ditiaer upon the exercise
outstanding options, warrants or rights, as follo86,000 shares under the 2004 Omnibus Stock &Hdrnl70,000 shares under
2011 Omnibus Stock Plan.

(2) Reflects 525,000 shares of common stock issualbd® @xercise of nonstatutory employee stock optignasited at exercise pric
equal to the fair market value of a share of commstock on the date of grant. Nonstatutory emplasteek options have historica
been granted to new employees as inducement gréets shareholder approved equity
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compensation plan shares have been depleted. E#tudse options expires ten years from the gratet diad vests over three years.

Item 6. Selected Financial Data

The selected financial data for the five years drféigbruary 2, 201Bave been derived from our audited consolidatezhfiral statement
The selected financial data presented below arkfigdan their entirety by, and should be reaccomjunction with, the financial statements
notes thereto and other financial and statisticfdrimation referenced elsewhere herein includirgitiiormation referenced under the cag
"Management’s Discussion and Analysis of FinanCiahdition and Results of Operations."

Year Ended
February 2, January 28, January 29, January 30, January 31,
2013 (a) 2012(b) 2011(c) 2010(d) 2009(e)
(In thousands, except per share data)
Statement of Operations Data:
Net sales $ 586,82( $ 558,39: $ 562,27 $ 527,87. $ 567,51
Gross profit 212,37 204,09! 199,52¢ 173,77: 182,74!
Operating loss (23,297 (16,839 (15,46¢) (41,177 (88,459
Net loss (27,67¢) (48,069 (25,86%) (41,999 (97,799
Per Share Data:
Net loss from continuing operation:
per common share $ (0579 $ (.09 $ (0.7¢) $ (0.45) $ (2.92)
Net loss from continuing operations
per common share — assuming
dilution $ (057 $ (1.09 $ (0.7¢) $ (0.4 $ (2.92)
Weighted average shares outstanc
Basic 48,87¢ 46,45 33,32¢ 32,53¢ 33,59¢
Diluted 48,87 46,45 33,32¢ 32,53¢ 33,59¢
February 2, January 28, January 29, January 30, January 31,
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
(In thousands)
Balance Sheet Data:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 26,477 $ 3295 $ 4647 $ 17,000 $ 53,84¢
Restricted cash and investments 2,10¢ 2,10(¢ 4,961 5,06( 1,58¢
Current assets 170,71. 163,27: 185,35 139,36: 161,46
Long-term investments — — — — 15,72¢
Property, equipment and other assets 41,38} 55,18¢ 53,00: 56,85 64,30
Total assets 212,09¢ 218,46l 238,35¢ 196,21 241,50(
Current liabilities 96,40( 91,36+ 103,79¢ 85,99: 95,98¢
Series B redeemable preferred stock — — 14,59¢ 11,24 —
Other long-term obligations 38,42( 25,50° 36,81( 10,67¢ —
Series A redeemable preferred stock — — — — 44,19
Shareholders’ equity 77,27¢ 101,58 83,15: 88,30 99,47:
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Year Ended
February 2, January 28, January 29, January 30, January 31,
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
(In thousands, except statistical data)
Other Data:
Gross profit 36.2% 36.€% 35.5% 32.% 32.2%
Working capital $ 7431 $ 71900 $ 8155¢ $ 5336¢ $ 6548
Current ratio 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.€ 1.7
Adjusted EBITDA (as defined)(f) $ 4,49¢ % 99 $ 2351 $ (19,41) $ (51,42)
Cash Flows:
Operating $ (848) $ (12,949 $ 327 $ (37,89 $ 7,10(
Investing $ (10,05 $ (7,819 $ (7430 % 8,307 $ 24,55
Financing $ 12,057 $ 7,25¢ $ 3657« $ (7,25 $ (3,41))
(a) Results of operations for fiscal 2012 includes d1.$ million writedown of our FCC broadcast license and a $500,0@0g¢

(b)
(©)

(d)

(€)

(f)

resulting from the early retirement of our $25 ioill term loan. Also, as a result of the Compangtair accounting calenddiscal
2012includes 53 weeks of operations as compared toegksvfor the other periods presented. See No#es2d 9 to the consolidal
financial statements.

Results of operations for fiscal 2011 includes &.%2nillion total charge related to the early prefd stock debt extinguishment. !
Note 8 to the consolidated financial stateme

Results of operations for fiscal 2010 include thkofving: (i) a $1.2 million charge due to earlyypagent of preferred stock obligatic
and (i) a $1.1 million charge related to incrensntestructuring charges incurred in fiscal 201@e SNotes 8 and 17 to !
consolidated financial statements.

Results of operations for fiscal 2009 include tlodofving: (i) a $3.6 million gain on the sale of cion rate securities, (ii)
$2.3 million charge related to the restructuringceftain company operations and (iii) a $1.9 millzharge related to costs associ
with our chief executive officer transition.

Results of operations for fiscal 2008 include tokofving: (i) an $11.1 million auction rate secig# write down, (i) an $8.8 millic
FCC license intangible asset impairment, (iii) a3¥illion charge related to the restructuring eftain company operations and (i’
$2.7 million charge related to costs associatel witr chief executive officer transition.

EBITDA as defined for this statistical presentati@presents net income (loss) for the respectivioge excluding depreciation a
amortization expense, interest income (expense) inodme taxes. We define Adjusted EBITDA as EBITXcluding det
extinguishment; non-operating gains (losses); cash impairment charges and write downs; restringgitand CEO transition cos
and non-cash shatmsed compensation expense. Management has indleléeirm Adjusted EBITDA in its EBITDA reconciliah
in order to adequately assess the operating pesfween of our "core" television and internet busieesand in order to maint:
comparability to our analyst’ coverage and financial guidance, when given. dament believes that Adjusted EBITDA allc
investors to make a meaningful comparison betwegncore business operating results over differemiops of time with those
other similar companies. In addition, managemesms usdjusted EBITDA as a metric to evaluate opegafierformance under
management and executive incentive compensatiagrams. Adjusted EBITDA should not be construedraalternative to operatil
income (loss), net income (loss) or to cash flowsmf operating activities as determined in accordawith generally accept
accounting principles and should not be constried aneasure of liquidity. Adjusted EBITDA may na& bomparable to similal
entitled measures reported by other companies.
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A reconciliation of Adjusted EBITDA to its compatalGAAP measurement, net loss, follows:

Year Ended
February 2, January 28, January 29, January 30, January 31,
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
(In thousands)
Adjusted EBITDA $ 4,49¢ % 99¢ ¢ 2351 $ (19.41) $ (51,42)
Less:
Loss on debt extinguishment (500 (25,679 (1,239 — —
Non-operating gains (losses) 10C — — 3,62¢ (969)
Write-down of auction rate investments — — — — (11,077
FCC license impairment (11,11) — — — (8,839
Restructuring costs — — (2,130 (2,309 (4,299
CEO transition costs — — — (1,939 (2,68))
Non-cash share-based compensation expen: (3,257) (5,007) (3,350 (3,20%) (3,929
EBITDA (as defined) $ (10,279 $ (29,690 $ (3,369 $ (23,22) $ (83,209
A reconciliation of EBITDA to net loss is as
follows:
EBITDA (as defined) $ (10,279 $ (29,690 $ (3,369 $ (23,22) $ (83,209
Adjustments:
Depreciation and amortization (13,427 (12,827 (13,339 (14,320 (17,299
Interest income 11 64 51 382 2,73¢
Interest expense (3,970 (5,527 (9,795 (4,929 —
Income tax benefit (provision) (20 (89 577 91 (33
Net loss $ (2767¢ $ (48,069 $ (25,869 $ (41,999 $ (97,79)

ITEM 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Fiancial Condition and Results of Operations

Introduction

The following discussion and analysis of finanaahdition and results of operations is qualifiedrbference to and should be rea
conjunction with our audited consolidated finanai@tements and notes thereto included elsewhehésiannual report.

Cautionary Statement Regarding Forward-Looking Staements

This Annual Report on Form 10-K, including the éalling Managemen$’ Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition &esults ¢
Operations and other materials we file with theuBiges and Exchange Commission (as well as inféionancluded in oral statements or ol
written statements made or to be made by us) comtaitain "forwardeoking statements" within the meaning of the PBv&ecuritie
Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Any statements canéal herein that are not statements of historiaat, fincluding statements regarc
guidance, industry prospects or future resultspErations or financial position made in this repamé forwardlooking. We often use wor
such as anticipates, believes, expects, intendssamithr expressions to identify forwaldeking statements. These statements are bas
managemens$ current expectations and accordingly are sulijeghcertainty and changes in circumstances. Acagllts may vary materia
from the expectations contained herein due to uarimportant factors, including (but not limited:toonsumer preferences, spending and
levels; the general economic and credit environmetgrest rates; seasonal variations in consurasrh@gising activities; the ability to achit
the most effective product category mixes to maz@msales and margin objectives; competitive presson sales; pricing and gross s
margins; the level of cable and satellite distiidutfor our programming and the associated feesstimated cost savings from cont
renegotiations; our ability to establish and mamtcceptable commercial terms with thpdrty vendors and other third parties with whon
have contractual relationships, and to successfmiipage key vendor relationships; our ability tocessfully manage and maintain our bi
name and marketing initiatives; our ability to mgeaur operating expenses successfully and ourimgpdapital levels; our ability to rem:
compliant with our longerm credit facility covenants; the market demamttélevision station sales; our management aratrimtion systen
infrastructure; challenges to our data and inforomasecurity; changes in governmental or regulateguirements; litigation or governmet
proceedings affecting our operations; the riskstified under Item 1A (Risk Factors) in this report Form 10K; significant public events t
are difficult to predict, such as widespread weattetastrophes or other significant televisgmvering events causing an interruptior
television coverage or that directly compete with viewership of our programming; and our abiliyeimploy and retain key executives
employees. You are cautioned not to place undienes on forward-looking statements, which spedit as of the date of
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this filing. We are under no obligation (and exgteslisclaim any such obligation) to update orradter forwardlooking statements whether
a result of new information, future events or othise.

Overview

Company Description

We are a multichannel electronic retailer that retgksells and distributes products to consumecaigin TV, telephone, online, mok
and social media. Our principal form of product @exyre is our 24our television shopping network, ShopNBC, whicldigtributed primaril
through cable and satellite affiliation agreements] markets brand name and private label prodndise categories of jewelry & watch
home & consumer electronics; beauty, health & &meand fashion & accessories. We also operate N\BGrom, a comprehensive
commerce platform that sells products appearingoon television shopping channel as well as an eddnassortment of onlinaaly
merchandise. Our programming and products are ratsteted via mobile devices, including smartphoaed tablets such as the iPad,
through the leading social media channels. We laavexclusive trademark license from NBCU, for therldwide use of an NBClrande:
name for a period ending in January 2014. Purstaatite license, we operate our television home gimgpnetwork and our internet webs
ShopNBC.com.

In January 2011, General Electric Company ("GEf)stonmated a transaction with Comcast CorporatiGorficast”) pursuant to whi
GE contributed all of its holdings in NBCU to NBClvarsal, LLC, a newly formed entity beneficially oed 51% by Comcast and 49% GE
As a result of that transaction, NBCU is now a wiholwned subsidiary of NBCUniversal, LLC. In Mar@013, GE sold its remainingd%
common equity interest in NBCUniversal, LLC to Castpursuant to an agreement reached in Februaf 20

Products and Customers

Products sold on our multiredia platforms include primarily jewelry & watchdome & consumer electronics, beauty, health 8efit
and fashion & accessories. Historically jewelry avaiches have been our largest merchandise catgegt¥ie are currently working to shift «
product mix to include a more diversified produss@tment in order to grow our new and active gustobase. The following table shows
merchandise mix as a percentage of television h&lm@ping and internet net merchandise sales foyehes indicated by product categ

group:

For the Years Ended

February 2, January 28, January 29,
2013 2012 2011
Merchandise Category
Jewelry & Watches 52% 53% 52%
Home & Consumer Electronics 27% 28% 32%
Beauty, Health & Fitness 13% 12% 10%
Fashion & Accessories 8% 7% 6%

Our product strategy is to continue to develop exghnd new product offerings across multiple mardise categories based on custc
demand, as well as to offer competitive pricing apdcial values in order to drive new customersraagimize margin dollars per minute. (
multichannel customers — those who interact with metwork and transact through TV, internet and ieotlevice —are primarily wome
between the ages of 35 and 65, married, with aeeaagual household incomes of $70,000 or more. Mteleve a strong presence of n
customers of similar age and income range. We \eelteir customers make purchases based on our upigdacts, quality merchandise
value.

Company Strategy

As a premium multichannel electronic retailer, @tirategy is to offer our customers differentiatadhldy brands and products a
compelling value proposition. We also seek to pitevioday's consumers with flexible programming fatsrand access that allow them to \
and interact with our content and products at themmvenience —whenever and wherever they are able. Our merchapdisitioning aims -
make us a trusted destination for quality and ghaity in a broad category of merchandise. We $oon creating a customer experience
builds strong loyalty and a growing customer base.

In support of this strategy, we are pursuing thefdng actions to improve the operational and ficial performance of our compa
(i) expand and diversify our product mix to appamore customers, to increase the purchase fregusnactive customers and to incre
customer retention rates, (ii) increase new aniyecustomers and improve household penetratidghjn@rease our gross margin dollars
maintaining merchandise margins in key productgaies while prudently managing inventory levelg) énhance our customer satisfac
through a variety of investments in technology,mpotional activity and improved and competitive cmsér service policies, (v) manage
fixed operating and transaction expenses, (vi) graw
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internet and mobile business with expanded prodssbrtments and internetly merchandise offerings, (vii) expand our in&tyrmobile an
social media channels to attract and retain mostoowers, and (viii) maintain cable and satelliteriage contracts at appropriate durat
while seeking cost savings opportunities and impdofootprint productivity through better channekipions and dual illumination or multig
channels.

Our Competition

The direct marketing and multichannel retail indigst are highly competitive. With our customersking to "watch and shop anytin
anywhere," we compete for the attention of custemeth other television home shopping andogamerce retailers; infomercial compan
other types of consumer retail businesses, inctudiaditional "brick and mortar" department stordiscount stores, warehouse stores
specialty stores; catalog and mail order retaded other direct sellers.

Our direct competitors within our industry inclu@®/C Network, Inc. and HSN, Inc., both of which ateéstantially larger than we are
terms of annual revenues and customers, and whoggapming is carried more broadly to U.S. housgthidhan our programming. T
American Collectibles Network, which operates Jew@lelevision, also competes with us for customerthe jewelry category. In additic
there are a number of smaller niche players antug&in the television home shopping arena whopmimwith us. We believe that our m:
competitors incur cable and satellite distributiers representing a significantly lower percentaiytheir sales attributable to their televis
programming than do we; and that their fee arrargggsnare substantially on a commission basis (mesoases with minimum guarante
rather than on the predominantly fixedst basis that we currently have. At our curraigslevel, our distribution costs as a percentddetal
consolidated net sales are higher than our conpetilowever, one of our key strategies is to nambur distribution fixed cost structure
order to leverage our profitability as we grow business.

The eecommerce sector also is highly competitive, andaveein direct competition with numerous other in&drretailers, many of whc
are larger, better financed and have a broadeomgstbase than we do.

We anticipate continuing competition for viewerslarustomers, for experienced home shopping persofamedistribution agreemer
with cable and satellite systems and for vendoid suppliers —not only from television home shopping companias, dso from othe
companies that seek to enter the home shoppingnéechet retail industries, including telecommuticas and cable companies, televis
networks, and other established retailers. We elibat our ability to be successful in the mubltichel retailing industry will be dependent
a number of key factors, including expanding dgital footprint to meet our customers' "watch ambp anytime, anywhere" needs, incree
the number of customers who purchase products iand increasing the dollar value of sales peoousr from our existing customer base.

Results for Fiscal 2012, 2011 and 2010

Consolidated net sales in fiscal 2012 were $586ll&mcompared to $558.4 million in fiscal 2014 5%increase. Consolidated net si
in fiscal 2011 were $558.4 million compared to $36@illion in fiscal 2010 , a 1% decrease. We ré&gmbian operating loss 23.3 millior
and a net loss of $27.7 million for fiscal 2012ur@perating loss in fiscal 2012 included an $Imillion non-cash impairment charge rela
to our FCC television broadcasting license. We rggban operating loss of $16.8 million and a nstlof $48.1 million for fiscal 20110ul
net loss in fiscal 2011 included a $25.7 milliomreash debt extinguishment charge. We reportedparating loss of $15.5 millioand a ne
loss of $25.9 million for fiscal 2010 . Operatingpenses in fiscal 20lidcluded $1.1 million of restructuring charges an1.2 million det
extinguishment charge.

FCC License Impairment

We annually review our FCC television broadcasenge for impairment in the fourth quarter, or mirexuently if an impairme
indicator is present. We estimated the fair valieus FCC television broadcast license primarilyusing incomebased discounted cash f
models with the assistance of an independent aufsitl value consultant. The discounted cash flondefs utilize a range of assumpti
including revenues, operating profit margin, prégelccapital expenditures and a discount rate.diitdi independent market data, assump
in our discounted cash flow models reflect declimesndependent television station industry revenaad operating margins resulting fi
television station rating declines and reduced dtbireg purchases on local broadcast televisiotiosta. These changes in assumptions res
in cash flows that did not support recovery of 823.1 million asset carrying value. As a result, igeorded an $11.1 million naast
impairment charge in the fourth quarter of fisc@ll2 to reduce the asset carrying value to fairevalhich is reflected in the caption "F
license impairment" in the accompanying consolidatatement of operations. We also considered tecenparable asset market data ant
depressed sales levels for recent comparable madwtactions for standalone television broadcgstiations to assist in determining
value.

While we believe that our estimates and assumptiegarding the valuation of the license are redslenaifferent assumptions or futi
events could materially affect its valuation. Irdaitn, due to the illiquid nature of this assair @aluation
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for this license could be materially different iewvere to decide to sell it in the short term whighon revaluation, could result in a fut
impairment of this asset.

Credit Facility

On February 9, 2012, we entered into a $40 milticedit and security agreement with PNC Bank, N'RNC"), a member of The PP
Financial Services Group, Inc., as lender and addm credit facility has a threggar maturity and bears interest at LIBOR plus ¥ognnur
Maximum borrowings under the credit facility areuatjto the lesser of $40 million or a calculatedrbaing base comprised of eligil
accounts receivable and eligible inventory. Théidhnet proceeds of borrowing of approximately £3Billion were primarily used to reti
our existing 11%, $25 million term loan with Cryisiinancial LLC and to pay a $12.4 million deferrpdyment obligation to a televisi
distribution provider. Subject to certain condisothe credit facility also provides for the isscamwf letters of credit in an aggregate amoul
to $6 million which, upon issuance, would be deeraddances under the credit facility. Remaining cépainder the credit facility provid
liquidity for working capital and general corporgtgrposes. Borrowings under the credit facility nnatand are payable in February 2015.

The credit facility contains customary covenantd aonditions, including, among other things, mairiteg a minimum of unrestrict:
cash plus credit availability of $6 million at &lnes and limiting annual capital expenditures.t@arfinancial covenants, including minim
EBITDA levels (as defined in the credit and segqudgreement) and a minimum fixed charge coveragje, raecome applicable only
unrestricted cash plus credit availability fallddve $12 million or upon an event of default. In &auh, the credit facility places restrictions
our ability to incur additional indebtedness orgag existing indebtedness, to create liens or atheambrances, to sell or otherwise dispo
assets, to merge or consolidate with other entiteesl to make certain restricted payments, incugayments of dividends to comn
shareholders.

Preferred Stock Redemption

In February 2011, we made a $2.5 million payment to Gipital Equity Investments, Inc. ("GE Equity") inretection with obtaining
consent for the execution of a common stock eqoftgring in December 2010, reducing the outstandiogrued dividend payable on
Series B preferred stock, and recorded a $1.2amiltharge to income related to the early prefestedk debt extinguishment. In April 20
we redeemed all of our outstanding Series B prefiestock for $40.9 million, paid accrued SeriesrBfgrred dividends of $6.4 million a
recorded a $24.5 million charge related to theyganéferred stock debt extinguishment.

Results of Operations

The following table sets forth, for the periodsigaded, certain statement of operations data egpdeas a percentage of net sales.

Year Ended
February 2, January 28, January 29,
2013 2012 2011

Net sales 100.C % 100.C% 100.C %
Gross margin 36.2% 36.€% 35.E%
Operating expenses:

Distribution and selling 32.5% 33.8% 32.:%

General and administrative 3.1% 3.5% 3.4%

Depreciation and amortization 2.3% 2.3% 2.2%

FCC license impairment 1.9% — % — %

Restructuring costs — % — % 0.2%
Total operating expenses 40.2 % 39.€ % 38.2%
Operating loss (4.0% (3.0% (2.7%

Interest expense, net (0.7)% (1.0% (1.9%

Other loss, net — % (4.6% (0.2%
Loss before income taxes 4. 7% (8.6)% (4.6)%

Income taxes — % — % 0.1%
Net loss (4.0% (8.6% (4.9%
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Key Operating Metrics

For the Twelve Months Ended

February 2, 2013 Change January 28, 2012 Change January 29, 2011
Program Distribution
Total homes (average 000’s) 82,76. 4% 79,82: 4% 76,437
Merchandise Metrics
Gross margin % 36.2% (40) bp: 36.6% 110 bp: 35.5%
Net shipped units (000’s) 5,62( 14% 4,947 (4)% 517¢
Average selling price $ 96 (8)% $ 104 3% $ 101
Return rate 22.1% (50) bp: 22.6% 280 bp: 19.8%
Internet net sales % (a) 45.7% 80 bp: 44.9% 370 bp: 41.2%

(a) Internet net sales percentage is calculateddbas sales orders that are generated from ourNB©Orom website and primar
ordered directly online.

Pro Forma Comparison of Results and Key Operatingtvics

Because we follow a 4-8-retail calendar, every five or six years we hameextra week of operations within our fiscal yaad thit
occurred in fiscal 2012 . Therefore, operationsdor fourth quarter and full year fiscal 20hdve 14 and 53 weeks, respectively, as com|
to operations for fourth quarter and full year éis2011 which have 13 and 52 weeks, respectivadyfa€ilitate a comparison with fiscal 2(
results, we are presenting pro forma comparableé&2k results for fiscal 20182 compared to fiscal 2011. Fiscal 2012 fourth tgugro form:
results were calculated by dividing actual fourttader results by 14 and by multiplying the quatseloy 13. The fiscal 2012ro forma resuli
were calculated by adding our fourth quarter 13kmve forma calculation to previously reported éisgear-toeate third quarter results
operations. We believe that the pro forma reswdtadpresented in the table below are useful testors for comparison to prior year results.

Pro Forma Fiscal Actual Fiscal Pro Forma
2012 (52 Weeks) 2011 (52 Weeks) Change

Results of Operations (in millions)

Net sales $ 574.1 $ 558.¢ 2.8%
Gross profit $ 208.: % 204.1 2.0%
Adjusted EBITDA $ 42 $ 1.C $ 3.2
Net loss $ 2770 $ (48.1) $ 20t

Program Distribution

Average homes reached, or full time equivalent EFTsubscribers, grew 4% in fiscal 2012 , resuliimg 2.9 millionincrease in avera
homes reached versus fiscal 2011 . Average FTEcsbbss grew 4% in fiscal 2011 , resulting in a 8&dlion increase in average hon
reached compared to fiscal 2010he annual increases were driven primarily byéases in our footprint as we expand into more y
distributed digital tiers of service. During fisc2012 , we also made loesst infrastructure investments that will enableaisoft launch ot
signal in high definition (HD) format and improveetappearance of our primary network feed. We haen testing HD as a multi channel 1
in selected markets during fiscal 2012, includif® 500 homes in Seattle that were launched inhing guarter of fiscal 2012 and 1.2 milli
homes launched primarily in the Tampa and Orlandokets during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2012. Wédieve that having an HD feed of
service will allow us to attract new viewers andgtomers, although the phased roll out of our HQI flery negatively impact future opera
expenses. Our television home shopping programrisngso simulcast live 24 hours a day, 7 days akwbeough our internet websi
www.shopnbc.com, which is not included in the farieg data on homes reached.

Cable and Satellite Distribution Agreements

We have entered into affiliation agreements thptasent approximately 1,52@ble systems along with the satellite companidsHUTV
and DISH that require each to offer our televistmme shopping programming on a ftithe basis over their systems. The terms o
affiliation agreements typically range from ondit@ years. During the fiscal year, certain
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agreements with cable, satellite or other distobaitmay expire. Under certain circumstances, theyitdon operators or we may cancel
agreements prior to their expiration. Additionallye may elect not to renew distribution agreemevtisse terms result in sudtandard ¢
negative contribution margins. If the operator drapr service or if either we or the operator felgeach mutually agreeable business t
concerning the distribution of our service so tthet agreements are terminated, our business mayaberially adversely affected. Failure
maintain our distribution agreements covering aemak portion of our existing households on accklgtdinancial and other terms co
materially and adversely affect our future growghles revenues and earnings unless we are ableatiga for alternative means of broz
distributing our television programming.

In February 2012, we renewed our largest televidistribution agreement now covering 19 million hesnor approximately 23% of ¢
83 million households. The terms of this agreentatter reflect rates in today's competitive disttibn environment, and we anticipate a
reduction in annual television distribution costeder this agreement by approximately $15 milliogibeing January 2013. As part of
agreement, we also received a second channelodithiibution provider which began in January 2013

As of February 2, 2013 , the direct equity owngrsbfi GE Equity in the Company consisted of warragotpurchase up t6,000,00!
shares of common stock, and the direct ownershigBCU in the Company consisted of 7,141,84PBares of common stock. The Comg
has a significant cable distribution agreement W@ttmcast and believes that the terms of this ageaemre comparable to those with o
cable system operators.

Net Shipped Units

The number of net shipped units during fiscal 20i2eased 14% from fiscal 2011 (11% on a pro fobasis) to 5.6 million from.S
million . The number of net shipped units duringcéil 2011 decreased 4% from fiscal 2010 to 4.9aniffrom 5.2 million. We believe th
increase in units shipped during fiscal 264 Aue to continued improvements to our merchandise specifically, a mix shift during the yeal
higher multiunit purchase categories such as fashion and heawtyales growth during the year and the modedire in our average pri
points during the year.

Average Selling Price

Our average selling price, or ASP, per net unit $@8 in fiscal 2012 , an 8% decrease from fiscdl120The decrease in the ASP \
driven primarily by a decrease in the sales mixhigfher price point consumer electronic items durihg year combined with a higl
concentration of product sales in our fashion amthda product lines. Consistent with our lolegm strategy, we anticipate a continued dec
in ASP as we further broaden and expand our proassrtment of lower priced items to reach a brnoaddience. For fiscal 201,1the ASH
was $104 , a 3% increase over fiscal 2010 . Thee@se in the fiscal 201ASP was driven primarily by unit selling price irases within ol
jewelry category as well as an increased salefrijpwelry items within the combined jewelry andtaefzes product categor

Return Rates

Our return rate was 22.1% in fiscal 2012 as contpare22.6% in fiscal 2011 , a 50 bps decrease.dHueease in the fiscal 20t€turr
rate was influenced by a decrease in return ratsnwour jewelry & watches and fashion & accesssrproduct categories as well as a
shift away from our jewelry product line, which tagcally has higher return rates. Our return raes 22.6% in fiscal 2011 comparedl@.8%
in fiscal 2010 , a 280 bpsecrease. We attribute the increase in the fisfallZeturn rate primarily to changes in the procadés mix as well |
greater sales of higher price point items, prinyggwelry, which historically also have higher netuates. We continue to monitor our ret
rates in an effort to keep our overall return raeline and commensurate with our current proghist and our average selling price levels.

Net Sales

Consolidated net sales, inclusive of shipping aaddhing revenue, for fiscal 2012 were $586.8 miillica 5%increase over consolidal
net sales of $558.4 milliofor the comparable prior period. As noted abowdi 2012 had 53 weeks as compared to fiscal 20ith had 5
weeks, and pro forma consolidated net sales foalfi2012 were $574.1 million, a 2.8% increase @eersolidated net sales for fiscal 2011.
increase in our consolidated net sales from ther year largely reflects the impact of sales insesain our fashion and accessories, be
health and fithess and home categories, offsetalgs sdecreases in our consumer electronics cateféthough net sales shortfalls in «
consumer electronics product category impactedowarall sales results for fiscal 2012, this catggexperienced positive growth during
fiscal 2012 fourth quarter evidencing the notaliteles we have made in rebuilding this product gatg during the year. Going forward,
still expect that this category will remain a snmadircentage of our overall company sales. We arestd on broadening our higher ma
product categories and also investing in new prodategories to grow our product mix and custonaseb Our esommerce sales penetral
was 45.7% in fiscal 2012 as compared to 44.9%sicafi2011 Our increase in internet penetration primarilffeets higher customer utilizati
of mobile ordering platforms than in the prior ygariod.
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Consolidated net sales, inclusive of shipping aaldfing revenue, for fiscal 2011 were $558.4 millica 1%decrease from consolida
net sales of $562.3 milliofor fiscal 2010. The slight decrease in our comsdéd net sales from the prior year reflects thgaich of a 24% sal
decrease in our consumer electronics product catdggely offset by increases in our beauty, leahd fithess and fashion and access
categories.

Gross Profit

Gross profit for fiscal 2012 was $212.4 millionn imcrease of 4% , compared to $204.1 million fecdl 2011 As noted above, fisc
2012 had 53 weeks as compared to fiscal 2011, wieech52 weeks, and pro forma gross profit for fit@l2 was $208.3 million, a Z
increase over gross profit for fiscal 2011. Tha@ase in the gross profits experienced during [fi8842 was driven primarily by the year-over:
year sales increase discussed above partially tdffigehe lower gross margin percentages experiemsediscussed below. Gross ma
percentages for fiscal 2012 , fiscal 2011 and fi2640 were 36.2% , 36.6% and 35.588pectively, representing a 40 bps decrease (801§
pro forma basis) from fiscal 2011 to fiscal 2012nd a 110 bps increase from fiscal 2010 to fis€dl12 The decrease in the gross ma
percentage experienced in fiscal 201&s driven primarily by increased shipping and tiagdpromotions made during the year and incre
inventory liquidation expense. The increase in gnosrgin percentage experienced during fiscal 2044 driven primarily by a higher sa
mix of higher margin product categories such as]gwand health and beauty, improved shipping attlling margins and a lower sales
of lower margin consumer electronics and a decriasar inbound inventory freight costs.

Gross profit for fiscal 2011 was $204.1 million qoamed to $199.5 million for fiscal 201,0an increase of 2%. The increase in ¢
profits experienced during fiscal 20Wias driven primarily by shifts in our sales mixHigher margin product categories, particularly jew
and health & beauty. Gross profits during fiscal P@lso increased as a result of increased shippiddhandling margins as a result of prot
mix.

Operating Expenses

Total operating expenses were $235.7 million , $226illion and $215.0 million for fiscal 2012 , ¢ial 2011 and fiscal 201@spectively
representing an increase of $14.8 million or 7%nfriiscal 2011 to fiscal 2012 , and an increase %9 $nillion , or 3% from fiscal 201
fiscal 2011. As noted above, fiscal 2012 had 53 weeks of dimgra&xpenses as compared to fiscal 2011, which32adieeks of operatil
expenses.

Distribution and selling expense for fiscal 2018reased $4.2 million , or 2% , to $193.0 million32.9% of net sales comparedhb38.¢
million or 33.8% of net sales in fiscal 2011 . Distition and selling expense increased from fig@1 primarily due to increased progr
distribution expense of $4.3 million related to% #crease in average homes reached during the earincrease over the prior year was
due to increased salary and wage costs of $2.8mé#ind increased customer service and telemagketipense of $600,000 attributable t
increase in units ordered and shipped during tlae. yithese distribution and selling expense increasee offset by decreases in variable ¢
card processing fees and other credit expense .4f Bilion, decreased share based compensationnegpeof $618,000 and decrease
advertising and promotion expense of $888,000.ribigion and selling expense for fiscal 2011 insexh $7.3 million, or 4%, to $18t¢
million, or 33.8% of net sales compared to $181ilion, or 32.3% of net sales in fiscal 2010. Distition and selling expense increased 1
fiscal 2010 primarily due to increased programribistion fees of $4.2 million related to a 4% irase in average homes during the yeal
improved channel positions obtained in certain rekDistribution and selling expense also incréadearing fiscal 2011 as a result
increased credit card fees and bad debt exper®.@fmillion, increased salary and consulting co$t$1.4 million and increased share b
compensation expense of $1.2 million. These distidln and selling expense increases during the weae offset by decreases in adverti
and promotion expense of $1.8 million and decreamsesstomer service and telecommunication expeos$300,000.

General and administrative expense for fiscal 28d@eased $1.2 million , or 6% , to $18.3 millioor,3.1%o0f net sales compared
$19.5 million , or 3.5% of net sales in fiscal 201General and administrative expense decreased fiszal 2011primarily as a result «
decreased shateased compensation expense of $1.1 million duleetditning of fully vested older stock option grantslonger being expens
and reduced restricted stock compensation experssdting from the timing of vesting, and decreasesalaries and consulting expens
$401,000, offset by an increase in board of dimsctees of $282,000. General and administrativeeese for fiscal 2011 increased $371,000
or 2% , to $19.5 million or 3.5% of net sales comeplato $19.2 million or 3.4% of net sales in fis2BlL0. General and administrative expe
increased from fiscal 2010 primarily due to incezhsharésased compensation of $296,000 and board of dietges of $399,000, offset b
$412,000 gain recorded on the disposal of a pieoperational equipment.

Depreciation and amortization expense was $13.Romi] $12.6 million and $13.2 million for fiscalb22 , fiscal 2011 and fiscal 2010
respectively, representing an increase of $0.6amill or 5% from fiscal 2011 to fiscal 2012 andexiase of $0.6 million , or 4% frofiscal
2010 to fiscal 2011 . Depreciation and amortizaggpense as a percentage of net sales was 2.3sdalr2012 , fiscal 2011 and fiscal 2010
The fiscal 2012 increase in depreciation and amatitin expense was primarily due to
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increased amortization expense of $170,000 ataiidetto our renewed NBCU trademark license andeas®d depreciation expense
$477,000 attributable primarily to new software tgues being put into service. The fiscal 2011 desen depreciation and amortiza
expense was due to a reduction in our depreciaddetaase year over year which resulted from owcl®ili upgrade becoming fu
depreciated during fiscal 2010, offset by increammdrtization expense attributable to our renewB€&€N trademark license.

Restructuring Costs

As a result of a number of restructuring initiadviaken by us in order to simplify and streamlime organizational structure, redi
operating costs and pursue and evaluate stratégimatives, we recorded restructuring chargeslof $nillion in fiscal 2010. Restructuri
costs primarily include employee severance costscated with streamlining our organizational stuoe, incremental costs associated witt
refinancing of our debt facilities, restructurindvésory service fees and costs associated witkegfi@alternative initiatives.

Operating Loss

We reported an operating loss of $23.3 millionigtdl 2012 compared to an operating loss of $16ll&mfor fiscal 2011, representin
an increase of $6.5 million . Our operating lossréased during fiscal 2012 primarily as a resulthaf $11.1 million norcash impairmel
charge recorded in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2@4 reduce the carrying value of our FCC licersdair value and increased progi
distribution expenses of $4.3 million as noted abdvhese increased costs were offset by increassg grofit dollars of $8.3 million achiev
during the year also as noted above.

We reported an operating loss of $16.8 millionfiscal 2011 compared with an operating loss of $18illion for fiscal 2010, an incres
of $1.3 million. Our operating loss increased dliglduring fiscal 2011 primarily as a result of ieased distribution and selling expen
which resulted from increased cable and sateligs fand increased credit card fees and bad dedhsxpas noted above. These increased
were partially offset by increased gross profitlai@ achieved from shifts in our product mix toheg margin product categories, particul
jewelry and health & beaut

Net Loss

For fiscal 2012 , we reported a net loss of $27illilam or $0.57 per basic and dilutive share, on84&,842weighted average comm
shares outstanding. For fiscal 2011 we reporteet doss of $48.1 million or $1.03 per basic andtilie share, on 46,451,26&ighted averag
common shares outstanding. For fiscal 2010 , werteg a net loss of $25.9 million , or $0.78 pesiband dilutive share, 083,326,20
weighted average common shares outstanding. Nefdogiscal 2012 includes interest expense of 3,800 , relating primarily to a narast
interest charge of $2.3 million in connection wilte writeoff of previously capitalized debt financing costgerest expense on outstanc
advances under our Credit Facility and the amditinaof fees paid to obtain our credit facility. tNess for fiscal 2012 also include$500,00!
charge relating to a pre-payment penalty paid eretirly retirement of our $25 million term loanfset by a gain of $100,00@corded on tf
sale of a non-operating asset and interest incotaértg $11,000 earned on our cash and investmBetsloss for fiscal 201includes a $25
million non-cash charge related to our early preferred stobtk eetinguishment, interest expense of $5.5 millielating primarily to intere
and debt discount amortization on our Series Beprefl stock, bank term loan expense and the aratioizof fees paid to obtain our b
credit facility and interest income totaling $6400€arned on our cash and investments. Net lodtstal 2010 includes interest expense of
million, relating primarily to accrued interest adebt discount amortization on our Series B prefitstock, bank term loan interest expense
the amortization of fees paid to obtain our barddirfacilities. Net loss for fiscal 2010 also imded a $1.2 million debt extinguishment chi
relating to a $2.5 million Series B preferred statkidend payment made in the fourth quarter inneanion with the execution of our Cry:
term loan and interest income totaling $51,000 eduom our cash and investments.

For fiscal 2012 , net loss reflects an income tawvigion of $20,000Q relating to state income taxes payable on ceiteiome for whic
there is no loss carryforward benefit availabler. #scal 2011, net loss reflects an income tax fmion of $84,000 also relating to state inct
taxes payable on certain income for which therisoss carryforward benefit available. For fis2@ll0, net loss reflects an income tax be
of $577,000 relating to a federal income tax camkbrefund claim filed and received during fisc@ll@, offset in part by state income te
payable on certain income for which there is ng learryforward benefit available.

We have not recorded any income tax benefit odabses recorded during fiscal 2012 , fiscal 201d fistal 2010due to the uncertain
of realizing income tax benefits in the future madi¢ated by our recording of an income tax valuatiiowance. Based on our recent histoi
losses, a full valuation allowance has been recbaahel was calculated in accordance with GAAP, whpieltes primary importance on our
recent operating results when assessing the needvfaluation allowance. We will continue to mainta valuation allowance against our
deferred tax assets, including those related t@petating loss carryforwards, until we believisimore likely than not that these assets wi
realized in the future.
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Quarterly Results

The following summarized unaudited results of opens for the quarters in fiscal 2012 and fiscal Rhave been prepared on the s
basis as the annual financial statements and teftaemal recurring adjustments that we consideessary for a fair presentation of result
operations for the periods presented. Our restiltsperations have varied and may continue to flatesignificantly from quarter to quar
Results of operations in any period should notdresered indicative of the results to be expefidedny future period.

First Second Third Fourth

Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter (a) Total
(In thousands, except percentages and per share aoas)
Fiscal 2012

Net sales $ 136,54¢ $ 13517¢ $ 137,59 $ 177,50( $ 586,82(
Gross profit 51,03: 51,68( 50,79( 58,87( 212,37
Gross profit margin 37.4% 38.2% 36.% 33.2% 36.2%
Operating expenses 56,46( 55,14 54,17¢ 69,88¢ 235,66
Operating loss (b) (5,42¢) (3,462) (3,38¢) (11,019 (23,29)
Other loss, net (3,31) (389 (287) (39§ (4,379
Net loss (b) $ (8,739 $ (3,845 ¢ (3,675 $ (11,41) $ (27,67¢)
Net loss per share $ (0.1¢) 9 (0.0 $ (0.0¢) $ (0.23) $ (0.57)
Net loss per share — assuming dilution $ (0.1 $ (0.0 $ (0.05 $ (0.2 $ (0.57)
Weighted average shares outstanding:

Basic 48,63¢ 48,85¢ 48,93: 49,07¢ 48,87"

Diluted 48,63¢ 48,85¢ 48,93: 49,07¢ 48,87"

Fiscal 2011

Net sales $ 143530 $ 132,13° $ 13518 $ 14753 $ 558,39:
Gross profit 53,39: 51,26¢ 50,24: 49,19; 204,09!
Gross profit margin 37.2% 38.7% 37.2% 33.2% 36.6%
Operating expenses 54,02: 54,807 55,61 56,49: 220,93:
Operating loss (630 (3,539 (5,369 (7,300 (16,83¢)
Other loss, net (28,28)) (900 (965) (996 (31,149
Net loss (c) $ (28,93) $ (4,45¢) $ (6,350) $ (8,32¢) % (48,069
Net loss per share $ 0.7 % (0.09 $ (019 $ 0.19) $ (1.03)
Net loss per share — assuming dilution $ 0.7 % (0.09 % 0.19) % 0.179) % (1.09)
Weighted average shares outstanding:

Basic 40,65¢ 48,13: 48,27: 48,54¢ 46,45

Diluted 40,65t 48,13: 48,27 48,54¢ 46,45

(@) As a result of the Company's retail calendss,fourth quarter of fiscal 20i8cludes 14 weeks of operations as compared toekk:
in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2011 .

(b) Net loss and operating loss for the fourth tpraof fiscal 2012 includes an $11.1 million neash impairment charge recorde:
reduce the carrying value of our FCC license to\alue. Net loss for the first quarter of fisc@l12 also includes a $2.3 million non-
cash interest charge related to the write-off efvgrusly capitalized debt financing costs.

(c) Net loss for the first quarter of fiscal 20htludes a $25.7 million charge related to an gamdferred stock debt extinguishment.
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Financial Condition, Liquidity and Capital Resources

As of February 2, 2013 , we had cash and cash alguits of $26.5 million and had restricted cash emwéstments of62.1 millior
pledged as collateral for our issuances of comrakarid standby letters of credit. Our restricteshcand investments are generally restri
for a period ranging from 360 days and to the extent that commercial and btalatters of credit remain outstanding. In addifiander oL
credit facility with PNC, we are required to mainta minimum of $6 milliorof unrestricted cash and unused line availabilitsltimes. As ¢
January 28, 2012 , we had cash and cash equivadér$#83.0 million and had restricted cash and itmesits of $2.1 millionpledged &
collateral for our issuances of commercial and ditgnietters of credit. During fiscal 2012 , workiegpital increased $2.4 million %74.:
million compared to working capital of $71.9 millidor fiscal 2011 The current ratio (our total current assets ¢otal current liabilities) we
1.8 at February 2, 2013 and January 28, 2012 .

Sources of Liquidity

Our principal source of liquidity is our availabtash and cash equivalents of $26.5 million asedfr&ary 2, 2013 . Ou2.1 millior
restricted cash and investment balance is usedliasetal for issuances of commercial and stanéitgts of credit and can fluctuate in rela
to the level of our seasonal overseas inventorghasges. At February 2, 2013ur cash and cash equivalents were held in baplksiton
accounts primarily for the preservation of cashiliity.

On February 9, 2012, we entered into a $40.0 milticedit facility with PNC Bank, N.A., a member of &#NC Financial Servic
Group, Inc., as lender and agent. The credit fadilas a three-year maturity and bears interestBOR plus 3%per annum. The initial n
proceeds of borrowing of approximately $38.2 millivere primarily used to retire our existing 11%25.0 millionterm loan with Crysti
Financial LLC and to pay a $12.4 milliateferred payment obligation to a television disttibn provider. Remaining capacity under the c
facility, currently $2.0 million , provides liquiti for working capital and general corporate pugss

Another potential source of netarm liquidity is our ability to increase our cabw resources by reducing the percentage of olas
offered under our ValuePay installment program pmbcreasing the length of time we extend credibup customers under this installm
program. However, any such change to the termsio¥/aluePay installment program could impact futsaées, particularly for products s
with higher price points. We are also currentlylexipg other financing alternatives including inaséng the capacity of our credit facility w
PNC.

On April 4, 2011, we completed a public offering®#87,500 common shares at a price to the publg6@®5 per share. Net proce
from the offering were approximately $55.5 milliafter deducting underwriting discount and otheenffg expenses. Cash proceeds fron
offering were used to redeem all of the outstandiBgo Series B redeemable preferred stock for $40l8N and pay all accrued Series
preferred dividends, amounting to $6.4 million. Tieenaining $8.3 million in proceeds were made add for working capital and gene
corporate purposes.

Cash Requirements

Currently, our principal cash requirements areutedfour business operations, which consist primafilpurchasing inventory for rese
funding accounts receivable growth through theaisaur ValuePay installment program in supportaiés growth, funding our basic opera
expenses, particularly our contractual commitméatscable and satellite programming, brand licegsimd the funding of necessary ca|
expenditures. We are closely managing our casluress and our working capital. We attempt to marmageanventory receipts and reorder
order to ensure our inventory investment levelsaienacommensurate with our current sales trendsal&e monitor the collection of our cre
card and ValuePay installment receivables and nmexwag vendor payment terms in order to more effebtimanage our working capi
which includes matching cash receipts from our @usts, to the extent possible, with related cagmmpats to our vendors. Our Valuel
installment program entitles customers to purchasechandise and generally make payments in two ane nequal monthly credit ce
installments. ValuePay remains a cost effectivenmtional tool for us. We continue to make strategie of our ValuePay program in an ef
to increase sales and to respond to similar cotpepirograms.

On May 11, 2012, we amended our trademark licegsseaent for the use of the ShopNBC brand name MBBU, extending the ter
of the license agreement through January 2014 .ofisideration for the amendment, we paid NBCU $4illam upon execution and will pi
an additional $2.8 million on May 15, 2013.

We also have significant future commitments for cash, primarily payments for cable and satellitsgpam distribution obligations a
the eventual repayment of our credit facility. Weliéve that our existing cash balances will beisigiit to maintain liquidity to fund o
normal business operations over the next twelvethsoiWe currently have total contractual cash @albii;ns and commitments primarily w
respect to our cable and satellite agreementsitdemility and operating leases totaling approxieiy $319.4 millionover the next five fisc
years.

For fiscal 2012 , net cash used for operating #igts/totaled $8.5 million compared to net cashdufsg operating activities 0$12.¢
million in fiscal 2011 and net cash provided by @ieg activities of $327,000 in fiscal 2010 . Nesh used for operating
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activities for fiscal 2012 reflects a net loss,afusted for depreciation and amortization, she®ed payment compensation, loss on
extinguishment, write-off of deferred financing t®sloss on disposal of assets, asset impairmardswaite-offs and the amortization
deferred revenue and other financing costs. Intaalglinet cash used for operating activities facdl 2012reflects an increase in accot
receivable and prepaid expenses offset by a dexnsagmventory and an increase in accounts payaht accrued liabilities. Accoul
receivable increased due to increased sales lgraisarily in the fourth quarter, as well as duéhigher utilization of our ValuePay installm
payment program during the fourth quarter. Inventecreased primarily as a result of our increasads levels during the fourth quar
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities increage®l012 primarily due to increased inventory reteignd the timing of payments mad:
inventory vendors and program distribution opematduring the fourth quarter of fiscal 2012 compat@dhe fourth quarter of fiscal 20:
offset by our payment of a $12.4 million deferrddigation to a television distribution provider.

Net cash used for operating activities for fiscall2 reflects a net loss, as adjusted for depreciatind amortization, shabase:
compensation, loss on debt extinguishment, gaim feguipment disposal and the amortization of deterevenue, debt discount and o
financing costs. In addition, net cash used forrafieg activities for 2011 reflects a decrease dooants receivable offset by an increas
inventories and a decrease in accounts payabl@@srded liabilities. Accounts receivable decreatsel to lower sales levels, primarily in
fourth quarter as well as due to lower utilizatmnour ValuePay installment payment program dutimg fourth quarter. Inventories increa
as a result of our merchandise mix shift towardslpct categories held in our inventory versus petaldropshipped directly by our vendao
Inventory levels were also impacted by our fourtlarger sales shortfall. Accounts payable and accliabilities, inclusive of longerm
payables, decreased in 2011 due primarily to thkimgaof our first scheduled $12 million deferredstdibution payment in February 2(
related to a television distribution provider, jElly offset by additional deferrals made in fis@l11l under the same agreement, and d
lower overall inventory receipts during the fougtlrarter of fiscal 2011 compared to the fourth qeraof fiscal 2010.

Net cash provided by operating activities for fls2@10 reflects a net loss, as adjusted for deatieci and amortization, shabase!
payment compensation, amortization of deferredmegeamortization of debt discount, debt extingumisht and asset writeffs. In addition
net cash provided by operating activities for fis2@10 reflects primarily an increase in accoumetseivable, offset by an increase in accc
payable and accrued liabilities, an increase it dividends, a decrease in inventories and aedse in prepaid expenses and o
Accounts receivable increased primarily as a resulbbur increased use of our ValuePay extendeditcpgdgram as a promotional tool
stimulate fourth quarter 2010 sales. Accounts pleyabd accrued liabilities increased primarily do@eferred payments for accrued cable
satellite fees, increases in accrued salaries dusetit increases and accrued dividends relatetthe¢oSeries B preferred stock. Inventa
decreased primarily as a result of our strong fouparter 2010 sales activity and our effort to aggninventory levels and our proc
assortments as we continued to introduce new medite categories to improve sales performance @mhsure our inventory levels rem
commensurate with our sales levels.

Net cash used for investing activities totaled $Ifillion for fiscal 2012 compared to net cash ukednvesting activities 0$7.8 millior
for fiscal 2011 and net cash used for investingviiets of $7.4 million in fiscal 2010 . Expendies for property and equipment we§é.z
million in fiscal 2012 compared to $11.1 millionfiscal 2011 and $7.6 million in fiscal 201&xpenditures for property and equipment du
fiscal 2012, fiscal 2011 and fiscal 20@fimarily include capital expenditures made for tleelopment, upgrade and replacement of com
software, order management and merchandising sgstesfated computer equipment, digital broadcastagipment and other offi
equipment, warehouse equipment and production ewnp Principal future capital expenditures areeexgd to include the developme
upgrade and replacement of various enterprise aoétaystems, the expansion of warehousing capauitysecurity in our network, the upgr
and digitalization of television production andnsanission equipment and related computer equiprassaciated with the expansion of
home shopping business and e-commerce initiatbesing fiscal 2012 , we also made a $4 millioash payment in connection with
extension of our NBCU trademark license and reckpmceeds of $102,00@lating to the disposal of assets and equipmeutinD fisca
2011, we received proceeds of $416,000 relatintbealisposal of equipment and decreased our restraash and investments by $2.9 mill
During fiscal 2010, we decreased our restrictedh eael investments by $99,000 and received net mamieeds totaling $55,000 in connec
with the sale of property and equipment.

Net cash provided by financing activities totald® 8 million in fiscal 2012 and related primarily ¢ash proceeds of $38.2 milliérom
our credit facility and cash proceeds of $109,00én the exercise of stock options, offset by pagtaenade totaling $25.5 million to repay
Crystal term loan, long term credit facility payneiotaling $215,000 and payment of deferred isseaosts of $552,000Net cash provide
by financing activities totaled $7.3 million in ¢ial 2011 and related primarily to cash proceedsived of approximately $55.&illion as ¢
result of our common stock equity offering and cpstceeds received of $1.8 millidrom the exercise of stock options, offset by pagtae
$40.9 million for the repurchase of all our outstiaig Series B Redeemable Preferred Stock andriBli®n for all accrued Series B Prefer
dividends and payment of deferred issuance cosk8@6,000 Net cash provided by financing activities totak3%.6 million in fiscal 2010 ai
related primarily to proceeds from the issuanca &25.0 million longerm debt agreement, net proceeds of $17.0 mii®ra result of o
common stock equity offering and cash proceedsvedef $357,000 from the exercise of stock optjaitset by deferred debt issuance
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payments totaling $3.3 million made in connectioithwobtaining our debt facilities and a $2.5 mifliceries B preferred stock divide
payment made in connection with the execution efGhystal term loan.

Financial Covenants

The Company's PNC bank credit facility containsteosary covenants and conditions, including, amotigerothings, maintaining
minimum of unrestricted cash plus facility availdpiof $6 million at all times and limiting annuaapital expenditures. Certain finan:
covenants, including minimum EBITDA levels (as defil in the credit facility) and minimum fixed chargoverage ratio, become applic:
only if unrestricted cash plus facility availabylifalls below $12 million or upon an event of ddfaés of February 2, 2013the Company
unrestricted cash plus facility availability was6$2 million and the Company was in compliance wifth applicable covenants of the cr
facility.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We do not have any offalance sheet arrangements, investments in sppaiglose entities or undisclosed borrowings or
Additionally, we are not party to any derivativent@cts or synthetic leases.
Contractual Cash Obligations and Commitments

The following table summarizes our obligations a@mmitments as of February 2, 2013and the effect these obligations
commitments are expected to have on our liquidity eash flow in future periods:

Payments Due by Period

Less than More than
Total 1 Year 1-3 Years 3-5 Years 5 Years
(In thousands)

Cable and satellite agreements (a) $ 21192: $ 80,85¢ $ 131,06: $ —  $ =
Long term credit facility 38,00( — 38,00( — —
Operating leases 4,02¢ 1,33t 2,581 112 —
Employment agreements 2,697 2,691 — — —
NBCU trademark license obligation 2,80( 2,80( — — —
Purchase order obligations 59,95! 59,95 — — —
Total $ 319400 $ 147.64: $ 17164 $ 11 % —

(a) Future cable and satellite payment commitmentdased on subscriber levels as of February 2, 208i3commitments entered intc
of the date of this report. Future payment commitin@mounts could increase or decrease as the nuofbeable and satelli
subscribers increase or decrease. Under certaumegtances, operators or we may cancel the agrégmeor to expiration.

Impact of Inflation

We believe that inflation has not had a materigbaat on our results of operations for each of theaf years in the thregear perio
ended February 2, 2013Ne cannot assure you that inflation will not haveadverse impact on our operating results arahfiial condition i
future periods.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

In July 2012, the FASB updated guidance on intdegilsset impairment testing. The guidance will bee@ffective for us in fiscal 201
The amendments in this update allow companieggbdssess qualitative factors to determine whetliemecessary to perform a quantita
impairment test. Under the update, a company vailbe required to calculate the fair value of agefinitedived intangible asset unless
company determines, based on qualitative assessthanhit is not "more likely than not", that thedefinitedived intangible asset is impair
The amendments include a number of events andnegtances for an entity to consider in conductirgy dbalitative assessment. We do
expect the implementation of the guidance to haveterial impact on our consolidated financialestagnts.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Managemens Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition &esults of Operations discusses our consolidatadcial statement
which have been prepared in accordance with act@uptinciples generally accepted in the Unitedé&taf America.
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The preparation of these financial statements regunanagement to make estimates and assumptatresfiact the reported amounts of as
and liabilities and the disclosure of contingergeds and liabilities at the date of the financtateaments and the reported amounts of reve
and expenses during the reporting periods. On agoorg basis, management evaluates its estimateassuanptions, including those relate
the realizability of accounts receivable, inventgoduct returns, intangible assets and defemeds$sets. Management bases its estimate
assumptions on historical experience and on vathisr factors that are believed to be reasonaidenthe circumstances, the results of w
form the basis for making judgments about the ¢agryalues of assets and liabilities that are patlily apparent from other sources. There
be no assurance that actual results will not dfff@m these estimates under different assumptioesmditions.

Management believes the following critical accongtipolicies affect the more significant assumpti@m estimates used in
preparation of the consolidated financial statesient

« Accounts receivable We utilize an installment payment program caladuePay that entitles customers to purchase raadibe an
generally pay for the merchandise in two or moreatanonthly credit card installments in which weabéhe risk of collection. Tt
percentage of our net sales generated utilizingvaluePay payment program over the past threel figaas ranged from 70% to 7¢
As of February 2, 2013 and January 28, 2012 , we dpproximately $92.6 million and $72.4 millignrespectively, due fro
customers under the ValuePay installment program.nvdintain allowances for doubtful accounts fomeated losses resulting frc
the inability of our customers to make requiredments. Estimates are used in determining the goovier doubtful accounts and i
based on historical rates of actual write offs detinquency rates, historical collection experieraredit policy, current trends in 1
credit quality of our customer base, average lengtialuePay offers, average selling prices, olesaix and accounts receiva
aging. The provision for doubtful accounts recelgalwhich is primarily related to our ValuePay praxg, forfiscal 2012, fiscal 201
and fiscal 2010 were $11.8 million , $11.9 milliand $9.3 million , respectively. Based on our fi12 bad debt experience, a one
half point increase or decrease in our bad deb¢réxpce as a percentage of total television horopmhg and internet net sales wc
have an impact of approximately $2.9 million on swolidated distribution and selling expense.

» Inventory. We value our inventory, which consists primaunify consumer merchandise held for resale, pringipallthe lower ¢
average cost or net realizable value. As of FeprBaP013 and January 28, 2012 , we had inventatgnices of $37.2 milliomanc
$43.5 million , respectively. We regularly reviemventory quantities on hand and recargrovision for excess and obsolete inver
based primarily on a percentage of the inventoigrize as determined by its age and specific prochigigory. In determining the
percentages, we look at our historical write offpepience, the specific merchandise categories ow, haur historic recove
percentages on liquidations, forecasts of futugspct television shows, historic show pricing ahd turrent market value of gc
Provision for excess and obsolete inventory focdis2012, fiscal 2011 and fiscal 2010 were $1.8ioml, $2.2 million and$1.7
million , respectively. Based on our fiscal 2012entory write down experience, a 10B6rease or decrease in inventory write dc
would have had an impact of approximately $379@9@onsolidated gross profit.

e Product returns We record a reserve as a reduction of gross sademticipated product returns at each maogth-and must ma
estimates of potential future product returns eslab current period product revenue. Our retutesran our television and inter
sales were 22% in fiscal 2012 , 23% in fiscal 2Q0hd 20% in fiscal 2010We estimate and evaluate the adequacy of oums
reserve by analyzing historical returns by merci@ndategory, looking at current economic trends$ @manges in customer dem
and by analyzing the acceptance of new producs.liAssumptions and estimates are made and usazhirection with establishii
the sales returns reserve in any accounting pefRekerves for future product returns, included acraed liabilities in th
accompanying balance sheets at the end of fisd# 2ad fiscal 2011 were $5.9 million and $4.5 moiilj respectively. Based on ¢
fiscal fiscal 2012 sales returns, a g@nt increase or decrease in our television amernet sales returns rate would have ha
impact of approximately $2.9 million on gross [irof

» FCC broadcasting licens. As of February 2, 2013 and January 28, 2012hawee recorded an intangible FCC broadcasting |
asset totaling $12.0 million and $23.1 million, pestively, as a result of our acquisition of Bostetevision station WWDP TV
fiscal 2003. We annually review our FCC televistmoadcast license for impairment in the fourth tgraror more frequently if ¢
impairment indicator is present. We estimated Hievfalue of our FCC television broadcast licensearily by using incomésase:
discounted cash flow models with the assistancanoindependent outside fair value consultant. Tiseodnted cash flow mod:
utilize a range of assumptions including revenoegrating profit margin, projected capital expemdis and a discount rate. Utiliz
independent market data, assumptions in our digeducash flow models reflect declines in independelevision station indust
revenues and operating margins resulting from tgil@v station rating declines and reduced advadigiurchases on local broadt
television stations. These changes in assumptesdted in cash flows that did not support recowdrhe $23.1 million asset carryi
value and as a result, we recorded an $11.1 mitlmmcash impairment charge in the fourth quarter afafi012 to reduce the as
carrying value to fair value. While we believe tloatr estimates and assumptions regarding the vafuat the license are reasona
different assumptions or future events could maligraffect its valuation.
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In addition, due to the illiquid nature of this esour valuation for this license could be alsdanally different if we were to decide
sell it in the short term which, upon revaluatioauld result in a future impairment of this asset.

» Deferred taxes We account for income taxes under the liabiligthod of accounting whereby income taxes are rézedrduring th
fiscal year in which transactions enter into theedmination of financial statement income (loss¢féred tax assets and liabilities
recognized for the expected future tax consequeotésmporary differences between the financialesteent and tax basis of as!
and liabilities. Deferred tax assets and liab#iteee adjusted for the effects of changes in tas End rates on the date of the enact
of such laws. We assess the recoverability of efierded tax assets in accordance with GAAP. Thmate realization of deferred 1
assets is dependent upon the generation of fuaixable income during the periods in which thosepierary differences becor
deductible. Management considers the scheduledsavef deferred tax liabilities, projected futuexable income and tax plann
strategies in making this assessment. In accordaitbethat standard, as of February 2, 2013 andiayxg28, 2012 we recorded
valuation allowance of approximately $120.3 milliand $114.5 million respectively, for our net deferred tax assetduding ne
operating loss carryforwards. Based on our recistoty of losses, a full valuation allowance wasoreled infiscal 2012, fiscal 201
and fiscal 201@&nd was calculated in accordance with GAAP, whilettgs primary importance on our most recent opegatesult
when assessing the need for a valuation allowaftecintend to maintain a full valuation allowance éar net deferred tax assets t
sufficient positive evidence exists to support reaeof allowances.

ltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures Aout Market Risk

We do not enter into financial instruments for tngdor speculative purposes and do not currentlizeitderivative financial instrumer
as a hedge to offset market risk. Our operatiorscanducted primarily in the United States andreresubject to foreign currency excha
rate risk. Some of our products are sourced intemmally and may fluctuate in cost as a resultar&fgn currency swings; however, we beli
these fluctuations have not been significant. Wieerully have a bank credit facility that has expesto interest rate risk; changes in ma
interest rates could impact the level of interegtemse and income earned on our cash and castatqis/portfolio.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Shareholders and Board of Directors of
ValueVision Media, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Eden Prairie, Minnesota

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balaheets of ValueVision Media, Inc. and subsid&(the "Company") as &kebruary 2
2013 and January 28, 2048d the related consolidated statements of opest&hareholders' equity and cash flows for eadheothree yea
in the period ended February 2, 201®ur audits also included the financial statemsstiedule listed in the Index at Item 15. Ti
consolidated financial statements and financiakstant schedule are the responsibility of the Campgamanagement. Our responsibility i
express an opinion on these consolidated finastaé¢ments and the financial statement schedutglmsour audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstaits of the Public Company Accounting OversighamioUnited States). Those stand.
require that we plan and perform the audits to inbtaasonable assurance about whether the contedlidamancial statements are free
material misstatement. An audit includes examiniog,a test basis, evidence supporting the amourdsdaclosures in the consolida
financial statements. An audit also includes assggbe accounting principles used and signifiagsttmates made by management, as w
evaluating the overall financial statement pred@raWe believe that our audits provide a reastmbhsis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statetagresent fairly, in all material respects, tbasolidated financial position of ValueVisi
Media, Inc. and subsidiaries as of February 2, 20i8January 28, 2012nd the results of their operations and theih ¢lsvs for each of tt
three years in the period ended February 2, 20dZonformity with accounting principles geneyadiccepted in the United States of Ame
Also, in our opinion, the financial statement salled when considered in relation to the basic chadated financial statements taken ¢
whole, presents fairly in all material respects, ithiformation set forth therein.

We have also audited, in accordance with the stasdaf the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bioédnited States), the Compar
internal control over financial reporting as of Redry 2, 2013 , based on criteria establishelati@rnal Control - Integrated Framewoiksuer
by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of Theadway Commission, and our report dated Margi22&3, expressed an unqualifi
opinion on the Company's internal control over fiicial reporting.

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP

Minneapolis, Minnesota
March 28, 2013
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VALUEVISION MEDIA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

February 2, January 28,
2013 2012
(In thousands, except share and per sha
data)
ASSETS
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 26,477 $ 32,95
Restricted cash and investments 2,10C 2,10(
Accounts receivable, net 98,36( 80,27
Inventories 37,15t 43,47¢
Prepaid expenses and other 6,62( 4,464
Total current assets 170,71: 163,27
Property & equipment, net 24,66¢ 27,99:
FCC broadcasting license 12,00( 23,11:
NBC trademark license agreement, net 3,991 1,21t
Other assets 72k 2,871

$ 212,09¢ $ 218,46(

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS'’ EQUITY
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable $ 65,71¢ $ 53,43’
Accrued liabilities 30,59¢ 37,84:
Deferred revenue 85 85
Total current liabilities 96,40( 91,36«
Deferred revenue 42C 507
Term loan — 25,00(
Long term credit facility 38,00( —
Total liabilities 134,82( 116,87

Commitments and contingencies (Notes 13 and 14)
Shareholders’ equity:
Common stock, $.01 per share par value, 100,00G;bafes authorized; 49,139,361 and 48,560,205

shares issued and outstanding 491 48¢
Warrants to purchase 6,000,000 and 6,007,372 sbhhoesnmon stock 53¢ 567
Additional paid-in capital 407,24« 403,84¢
Accumulated deficit (330,989 (303,31)

Total shareholders’ equity 77,27¢ 101,58¢

$ 212,09¢ $ 218,46(

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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Net sales
Cost of sales
Gross profit
Operating expense:
Distribution and selling
General and administrative
Depreciation and amortization
FCC license impairment
Restructuring costs
Total operating expense
Operating loss
Other income (expense):
Interest income
Interest expense
Gain on sale of assets
Loss on debt extinguishment
Total other expense
Loss before income taxes
Income tax benefit (provision)
Net loss

Net loss per common share

VALUEVISION MEDIA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Net loss per common share — assuming dilution

Weighted average number of common shares outsigndin

Basic
Diluted

For the Years Ended

February 2, January 28, January 29,
2013 2012 2011
(In thousands, except share and per share data)

$ 586,82( $ 558,39: §$ 562,27
374,44 354,29¢ 362,74«
212,37. 204,09! 199,52¢
193,03 188,81: 181,53t
18,29 19,54 19,17:

13,22 12,57¢ 13,15¢

11,11: —_ —

— — 1,13(

235,66 220,93: 214,99!
(23,29 (16,839 (15,46¢€)

11 64 51
(3,970 (5,527 (9,795

10C — —
(500) (25,679 (1,23%)
(4,359 (31,147 (20,979
(27,65¢) (47,980 (26,445

(20) (84) 577
$ (27,67¢) $ (48,069 $ (25,86%)
$ (0.57 $ (2.09) % (0.7¢)
$ (0.57 $% (2.09) % (0.7¢)

48,874,84 46,451,26 33,326,20

48,874,84 46,451,26 33,326,20

The accompanying notes are an integral part ottheasolidated financial statements.
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VALUEVISION MEDIA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

For the Years Ended February 2, 2013 , January 22012 and January 29, 2011

BALANCE, January 30, 2010
Net loss

Common stock issuances pursuant to equity
compensation plans

Stock purchase warrants forfeited
Share-based payment compensation
Common stock issuances
BALANCE, January 29, 2011

Net loss

Common stock issuances pursuant to equity
compensation plans

Stock purchase warrants forfeited
Share-based payment compensation

Common stock issuances

Common stock issuances - NBCU
BALANCE, January 28, 2012

Net loss

Common stock issuances pursuant to equity
compensation plans

Stock purchase warrants forfeited
Share-based payment compensation

BALANCE, February 2, 2013

Common Stock “eock Additona Total
Number Par Purchase Paid-In Accumulated Shareholders'
of Shares Value Warrants Capital Deficit Equity

In thousands, except share data
32,672,73 $ 327 $ 637 $316,72. $(229,38) $ 88,30/
(25,86¢) (25,86¢)
208,95: 2 — 35E — 357
— — (35) 35 — —
— — — 3,35( — 3,35(
4,900,001 49 = 16,96( = 17,00¢
37,781,68 37¢ 60z 337,420 (255,249 83,15
(48,06/) (48,069
601,36: 6 — 1,82z — 1,82¢
— — (35) 35 — —
— — — 5,007 — 5,007
9,487,50! 9t = 55,40¢ = 55,50(
689,65! 7 — 4,15¢ — 4,16¢
48,560,20 48¢€ 567 403,84¢ (303,31 101,58¢
(27,67¢) (27,67¢)
579,15t 5 — 104 — 10¢
— — (39 34 — —
— — — 3,257 — 3,25
49,139,36 $ 491 $ 53 $407,24: $(330,98) $ 77,27¢

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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VALUEVISION MEDIA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(In thousands)

OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net loss

Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash piexviby (used for) operating
activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Share-based payment compensation
Write-off of deferred financing costs
Amortization of deferred revenue
Amortization of debt discount
Amortization of deferred financing costs
Asset impairments and write offs
Loss on debt extinguishment
Gain from disposal of assets
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable, net
Inventories, net
Prepaid expenses and other
Deferred revenue
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Accrued dividends payable — Series B preferredkstoc
Net cash provided by (used for) operating actigitie
INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Property and equipment additions
Purchase of NBC trademark license
Change in restricted cash and investments
Proceeds from disposal of assets
Net cash used for investing activities
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Payment for Series B preferred stock redemption
Payment for Series B preferred stock dividends
Payments for deferred issuance costs
Proceeds from issuance of long term debt
Payments on long term debt
Proceeds from exercise of stock options
Proceeds from issuance of term loan
Proceeds from issuance of common stock, net
Net cash provided by financing activities
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equisalent
BEGINNING CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

ENDING CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

For the Years Ended

February 2, January 28, January 29,
2013 2012 2011
(27,676 $ (48,069 $ (25,86%)

13,42¢ 12,827 13,331
3,257 5,007 3,35(
2,30¢ — —

(87) (1,062 (728)
— 57t 2,121
24¢ 60¢ 30¢

11,11: — 80¢

50C 25,67¢ 1,23¢
(102) (416) —
(18,086 9,90¢ (21,29))
6,321 (3,67¢) 4,277
(2,06¢€) (460) 34¢
— 50C —
2,367 (15,44°) 16,76¢
— 1,06¢ 5,66¢

(8,482) (12,949 327

(6,157 (12,09¢) (7,589

(4,000 — —

— 2,861 99

10z 41€ 55
(10,05%) (7,819 (7,430
— (40,857 —

— (8,915 (2,500
(552 (30¢) (3,297)
38,21t —_ —
(25,71%) — —
10¢ 1,82¢ 357

— — 25,00(

— 55,50( 17,00¢

12,05 7,254 36,57«

(6,480) (13,519 29,47:

32,951 46,47 17,00(

26,477 $ 3295 $ 46,47

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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VALUEVISION MEDIA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Years Ended February 2, 2013, January 28, 2012 ardénuary 29, 2011

(1) The Company

ValueVision Media, Inc. and its subsidiaries (tH@ofmpany") is a multichannel electronic retailertthzarkets, sells and distribu
products to consumers through TV, telephone, ontimzbile and social media. The Company's prindigah of product exposure is its 2¥ul
television shopping network, ShopNBC, which marketnd name and private label products in the caieg of jewelry & watches; home
consumer electronics; beauty, health & fitness; tashion & accessories. Orders are fulfilled viepbone, online and mobile chann
ShopNBC is distributed into approximately 84 mitlibomes, primarily through cable and satellite affibn agreements, agreements °
telecommunications companies such as AT&T and Vderiand the purchase of month-to-month full- and-pare lease agreements of ce
and broadcast television time. ShopNBC programnii@lso streamed live on the internet at www.ShogM®m. The Company al
distributes its programming through a compamyred full power television station in Boston, Maslsusetts and through leased carriage
full power television station in Seattle, Washingto

The Company also operates ShopNBC.com, a comprigkesxsommerce platform that sells products appearingsoielevision shoppir
channel as well as an extended assortment of eatihemerchandise. Its programming and productsatse marketed via mobile devic
including smartphones and tablets such as the &abithrough the leading social media channels.

The Company has an exclusive trademark license M&@Universal Media, LLC, formerly known as NBC Warsal, Inc. ('"NBCU")
for the worldwide use of an NBCbranded name through January 2014. Pursuant tbcthese, the Company operates its television t
shopping network and its internet website, ShopNB@.

(2) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Fiscal Year

The Company's most recently completed fiscal yads@n the Saturday nearest to January 31. Refsseéag/ears in this report relate
fiscal years, rather than to calendar years. Thegamy’s most recently completed fiscal year ended-ebruary 2, 2013nd is designatt
fiscal 2012 . Fiscal 2012 consisted of 53 week® ydar ended January 28, 2012 is designated #6ddl and consisted of 32eeks. The ye
ended January 29, 2011 is designated fiscal 20d@amsisted of 52 weeks.

Principles of Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial stateménttude the accounts of the Company and its whallyned subsidiarie
Intercompany accounts and transactions have beemated in consolidation.

Revenue Recognition and Accounts Receivable

Revenue is recognized at the time merchandisappeth or when services are provided. Shipping amdlling fees charged to custorn
are recognized as merchandise is shipped andassif@d as revenue in the accompanying statenoéiaigserations in accordance with GA/
The Company classifies shipping and handling costee accompanying statements of operations asrgpanent of cost of sales. Revent
reported net of estimated sales returns and exglgdies taxes. Sales returns are estimated anddgdofor at the time of sale based
historical experience. Payments received for wedilbrders are reflected as a component of accraleitities.

Accounts receivable consist primarily of amount® dtom customers for merchandise sales and fromitccard companies, and .
reflected net of reserves for estimated uncolléstdmounts of $6,214,000 at February 2, 2013 an@3B5000 at January 28, 2012The
Company utilizes an installment payment prograntedaV/aluePay that entitles customers to purchasehmadise and generally pay for
merchandise in two or more equal monthly creditdcenstallments. As of February 2, 2013 and Jan@8ry2012, the Company h:
approximately $92,571,000 and $72,415,008spectively, of net receivables due from custsns@der the ValuePay installment program.
Company maintains allowances for doubtful accodotsestimated losses resulting from the inabiliiyits customers to make requi
payments. Provision for doubtful accounts receieghimarily related to the Company’s ValuePay pangrwere $11,792,000$11,876,00
and $9,321,000 for fiscal 2012, fiscal 2011 anddi010 , respectively.
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VALUEVISION MEDIA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Conti nued)

Cost of Sales and Other Operating Expenses

Cost of sales includes primarily the cost of menthise sold, shipping and handling costs, inbouedifit costs, excess and obsc
inventory charges and customer courtesy credithasing and receiving costs, including costs spéttion, are included as a compone
distribution and selling expense and were approtetyes9,348,000 , $8,245,000 and $7,888,000 faafi2012, fiscal 2011 and fiscal 2010
respectively. Distribution and selling expense ¢singrimarily of cable and satellite access feesdit card fees, bad debt expense and
associated with purchasing and receiving, inspegctinarketing and advertising, show production, webmarketing and merchandisi
telemarketing, customer service, warehousing alfdihient. General and administrative expense cstssprimarily of costs associated v
executive, legal, accounting and finance, infororatystems and human resources departments, sefamdr system maintenance contri
insurance, investor and public relations and dinefetes.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on dephsi Company maintains its cash balances atdiahmstitutions in demand depc
accounts that are federally insured. The Compasynioa experienced losses in such accounts andsesglieis not exposed to any signific
credit risk on its cash and cash equivalents.

Restricted Cash and Investments

The Company had restricted cash and investmen®2df00,000 for each of fiscal 2012 and fiscal 201The restricted cash &
investments primarily collateralize the Companyssuances of commercial letters of credit. The Cawjgarestricted cash and investm
consist of certificates of deposit. Interest incameecognized when earned.

Inventories

Inventories, which consists of consumer merchankédd for resale, are stated principally at thedowf average cost or net realiz¢
value, giving consideration to obsolescence writerts of $3,787,000 at February 2, 2013 and $2,20630 January 28, 2012 .

Marketing and Advertising Costs

Marketing and advertising costs are expensed asret and consist primarily of contractual markgtifiees paid to certain cal
operators for cross channel promotions and intemdgertising, including amounts paid to online shagngine operators, customer maili
and trafficdriving affiliate websites. The Company receivesdar allowances for the reimbursement of certawvedising costs. Advertisir
and other allowances received by the Company aded as a reduction of expense and were $1,074,$892,000 and $630,000 fiiscal
2012, fiscal 2011 and fiscal 2010respectively. Total marketing and advertisingtsand internet search marketing fees, after refig
allowances given by vendors, totaled $1,843,002,115,000 and $5,662,000 for fiscal 2012, fiscal2@nd fiscal 2010 respectively. Tt
Company includes advertising costs as a comporehistwibution and selling expense in the Compangasolidated statement of operations.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost. Impremé&srand renewals that extend the life of an aasetapitalized and deprecia
Repairs and maintenance are charged to expenseased. The cost and accumulated depreciationrapgoty and equipment retired
otherwise disposed of are removed from the relatmibunts, and any residual values are chargededited to operations. Depreciation
amortization for financial reporting purposes arevided on the straighine method based upon estimated useful lives. Civsturred t
develop software for internal use and the Compmamgbsites are capitalized and amortized over dtimated useful life of the software. Cc
related to maintenance of internal-use softwarefanthe Company’s website are expensed as incurred

Intangible Assets

The Companys primary identifiable intangible assets includeRC broadcast license and a trademark licensesiagret. Identifiabl
intangibles with finite lives are amortized andgbddentifiable intangibles with indefinite liveseanot amortized. Identifiable intangible as
that are subject to amortization are evaluatednipairment whenever events or changes in circurnstgimdicate that the carrying amount |
not be recoverable. Identifiable intangible asseissubject to amortization are tested for impairtrennually or more frequently if eve
warrant. The impairment test consists of a compartf the fair value of the intangible asset withdarrying amount.
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VALUEVISION MEDIA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Conti nued)

Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes under thalitja method of accounting whereby deferred taxets and liabilities a
recognized for the expected future tax consequenicesnporary differences between financial statenaed tax basis of assets and liabili
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are adjustedHe effects of changes in tax laws and rateshendate of the enactment of such laws.
Company assesses the recoverability of its defeaedssets in accordance with GAAP.

The Company recognizes interest and penaltiesrktatuncertain tax positions within income taxenge.

Net Loss Per Common Share

Basic loss per share is computed by dividing regabldss by the weighted average number of comnuwk stutstanding for the repon
period. Diluted loss per share reflects the po#tidiution that could occur if securities or ottrentracts to issue common stock were exer
or converted into common stock of the Company dureported periods.

A reconciliation of net loss per share calculatians the number of shares used in the calculafitrasic loss per share and diluted
per share is as follows:

For the Years Ended

February 2, January 28, January 29,
2013 2012 2011
Net loss (a) $ (27,676,00) $ (48,064,00) $ (25,868,00)
Weighted average number of common shares outsigrdiBasic 48,874,84 46,451,26 33,326,20
Dilutive effect of stock options, non-vested shaard warrants — — —
Weighted average number of common shares outs@ndibiluted 48,874,84 46,451,26 33,326,20
Net loss per common share $ (057 $ (2.09 % (0.7¢)
Net loss per common share — assuming dilution $ (057 $ (1.09 $ (0.7¢)

(a) The net loss for fiscal 2012 includes an $Imillion non-cash intangible asset impairment charge relatetheoCompany's FC
broadcasting license. In addition, the net lossegigcal 2012 and fiscal 2011 also include chatgésding $500,000 and $25.7 millign
respectively, related to losses on debt extinguestirmade during the first quarters of those respegears.

For fiscal 2012, fiscal 2011 and fiscal 2010 , appnately 3,920,000 , 5,563,000 and 4,719,000peetvely, incremental in-thmone)
potentially dilutive common share stock options avatrants have been excluded from the computatiadilated earnings per share, as
effect of their inclusion would be anti-dilutive.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

GAAP requires disclosures of fair value informatamout financial instruments for which it is praetble to estimate that value. In c¢
where quoted market prices are not available, alues are based on estimates using present valoéher valuation techniques. Th
techniques are significantly affected by the asdionp used, including discount rate and estimafefsitare cash flows. In that regard,
derived fair value estimates cannot be substadtite comparison to independent markets and, in nw®es, could not be realizec
immediate settlement of the instrument. GAAP exetudertain financial instruments and all rfovancial instruments from its disclos
requirements.

The Company used the following methods and assompth estimating its fair values for financialtinsnents:

The carrying amounts reported in the accompanyamgalidated balance sheets approximate the faieviar cash and cash equivale
shortterm investments, accounts receivable, trade pagadnhd accrued liabilities, due to the short misriof those instruments. The
value of the Company’s $38 millidong term credit facility is estimated based oresaavailable to the Company for issuance of debtof
February 2, 2013, the Company's long term creditify had a carrying amount and an estimatedvalue of $38 million .

Fair Value Measurements on a Nonrecurring Basis

Assets and liabilities that are measured at fdirevan a nonrecurring basis relate primarily to @ungible fixed assets and intangible F
broadcasting license asset, which are remeasured edtimated fair value is below carrying valugtmnconsolidated balance sheets. For 1
assets, the Company does not periodically adjsistatrying value to fair value except in the evahimpairment. If the Company determi
that impairment has occurred, the carrying valu¢hefasset is reduced to fair value and the diffezes recorded as a loss within opere
income in the consolidated statement of operatibasing
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fiscal 2012 , the Company recorded an $11.1 millmn-cash impairment charge to reduce the carrying valluéts intangible FC
broadcasting license asset to fair value in thempanying fiscal 2012onsolidated balance sheet. We had no remeasureofesuch assets
liabilities to fair value during fiscal 2011 .

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conftymiith GAAP in the United States of America regsmanagement to make estim
and assumptions that affect the reported amoundssdts and liabilities, the disclosure of contiigessets and liabilities as of the date o
financial statements and the reported amountsveintges and expenses during reporting periods. Téstsrates relate primarily to the carry
amounts of accounts receivable and inventories,réladizability of certain longerm assets and the recorded balances of certamea
liabilities and reserves. Ultimate results coulifiedtifrom these estimates.

Stock-Based Compensation

Compensation is recognized for all stock-based @msgtion arrangements by the Company, including@mp and noremployee stoc
options granted. The estimated grant date fairevafieach stockased award is recognized in income over the raguasrvice period, which
generally the vesting period. The estimated falo@af each option is calculated using the Blacke®es option-pricing model for timiease:
vesting awards and a Monte Carlo valuation modeihfarket-based vesting awards. N@sted share awards are recorded as comper
cost over the requisite service periods based @ffaih value on the date of grant.

(3) Property and Equipment

Property and equipment in the accompanying corsgitibalance sheets consisted of the following:

Estimated

Useful Life

(In Years) February 2, 2013 January 28, 2012
Land and improvements — $ 3,437,000 $ 3,399,001
Buildings and improvements 5-40 23,261,00 23,283,00
Transmission and production equipment 5-10 5,907,001 8,416,001
Office and warehouse equipment 3-15 8,611,001 9,818,001
Computer hardware, software and telephone equipment 3-7 86,602,00 90,447,00
Leasehold improvements 3-5 2,681,001 2,733,001
Less — Accumulated depreciation (105,834,00) (110,104,00)

$ 2466500 $ 27,992,00

Depreciation expense in fiscal 2012, fiscal 201d fistal 2010 was $9,376,000 , $8,949,000 and #100D0 , respectively.

(4) Intangible Assets

Intangible assets in the accompanying consolidatéahce sheets consisted of the following:

Weighted February 2, 2013 January 28, 2012
Average Gross Gross
Life Carrying Accumulated Carrying Accumulated
(Years) Amount Amortization Amount Amortization
Finite-lived intangible assets:
NBCU trademark license - second renewal 1.7 $ 6,830,000 $ (2,833,00) $ — $ —
NBCU trademark license - first renewal 1.0 $ 4,166,000 $ (4,166,000 $ 4,166,000 $ (2,951,00)
Indefinite-lived intangible assets:
FCC broadcast license $ 12,000,00 $ 23,111,00

The Company annually reviews its FCC televisiorgligast license for impairment in the fourth quardemore frequently if an impairme
indicator is present. The Company estimated thevidue of its FCC television broadcast licensenprily by using incomésased discount:
cash flow models with the assistance of an indepeindutside fair value consultant. The discounted
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cash flow models utilize a range of assumptionfuiing revenues, operating profit margin, projeategital expenditures and a discount
Utilizing independent market data, assumptionsun discounted cash flow models reflect declinegdependent television station indut
revenues and operating margins resulting from igll@v station rating declines and reduced advedigiurchases on local broadcast televi
stations. These changes in assumptions resultessim flows that did not support recovery of the.$28illion asset carrying value. As a res
the Company recorded an $11.1 million reash impairment charge in the fourth quarter afafif012 to reduce the asset carrying value t
value which is reflected in the caption "FCC licemsmpairment” in the accompanying consolidatecestant of operations. The Company
considered recent comparable asset market datahendepressed sales levels for recent comparabikemaansactions for standalc
television broadcasting stations to assist in d&tang fair value.

While the Company believes that its estimates asdraptions regarding the valuation of the licenser@asonable, different assumpti
or future events could materially affect its valaat In addition, due to the illiquid nature ofshasset, the Company's valuation for this lic
could be materially different if it were to decittesell it in the short term which, upon revaluaticould result in a future impairment of 1
asset.

On May 11, 2012, the Company amended its tradeiietse agreement for the use of the ShopNBC bnante with NBCU, extendir
the term of the license agreement through Januatyl.2As consideration for the amendment, the Compmid NBCU $4,000,00Qipor
execution and will pay an additional $2,830,000Mmy 15, 2013, which is included in accrued liaBBktin the accompanyirfgebruary 2, 201
consolidated balance sheet. NBCU also has the tigtgrminate the trademark license agreementif@Gbmpany were to be in default or
Credit Facility (as defined below), unless waivedctored within 90 days of default, or if unresteidtcash plus credit availability on the fac
were to fall below $8 million . On May 16, 2011etompany issued 689,658ares of the Company's common stock as considergr ¢
one year renewal of the same trademark licenseeagmet. Shares issued were valued at $pdddshare, representing the fair market valt
the Company's stock on the date of issuance.

Amortization expense in fiscal 2012, fiscal 201H discal 2010 was $4,048,000 , $3,879,000 and $30®D, respectively. Estimat:
amortization expense for fiscal 2013 will be appmately $3,997,000 .

(5) Accrued Liabilities

Accrued liabilities in the accompanying consolidbbalance sheets consisted of the following:

February 2, 2013  January 28, 2012

Accrued cable access fees $ 15,156,00 $ 27,506,00
Accrued salaries and related 2,377,001 1,343,00!
NBCU license agreement 2,830,001 —
Reserve for product returns 5,854,001 4,544,001
Other 4,379,00! 4,449,00!

$ 30,596,00 $ 37,842,00

(6) ShopNBC Private Label Consumer Credit Card Progam

The Company has a private label consumer creditmargram (the "Program”). The Program is madelalbviai to all qualified consume
for the financing of purchases of products from [B¥BC. The Program provides a number of benefitsustomers including deferred billi
options and free or reduced shipping promotionsughout the year. Use of the ShopNBC credit carthéus customer loyalty, reduces t
credit card expense and reduces the Compgamwerall bad debt exposure since the credit cauing bank bears the risk of loss on Shop
credit card transactions that do not utilize thenpany's ValuePay installment payment program. loebeber 2011, the Company entered
a Private Label Consumer Credit Card Program Ages¢rAmendment with GE Capital Retail Bank extendimg Program for an additior
seven years until 2019. The Company received a,$808igning bonus as an incentive for the Company terekthe Program. The sign
bonus has been recorded as deferred revenue attioenpanying financial statements and is beinggmized as revenue over the sevesa
term of the agreement.

GE Capital Retail Bank, the issuing bank for thegPam, is indirectly whollyewned by the General Electric Company ("GE"), whig
also the parent company of GE Equity. As of Margh2013, GE Equity has an approximate 1d¥mership in the Company and has the
to select three members of the Company’s boardreftdrs.
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(7) Fair Value Measurements

GAAP utilizes a fair value hierarchy that prioré&the inputs to valuation techniques used to medair value into three broad levels. -
fair value hierarchy gives the highest priorityotzservable quoted prices (unadjusted) in activeketarfor identical assets and liabilities anc
lowest priority to unobservable inputs.

As of February 2, 2013 and January 28, 2012 thegaomhad $ 2,100,000 Level 2 investments in the form of bank certfies of depos
which are used as cash collateral for the issuaf@mmercial and standby letters of credit. Than@any's investments in certificates
deposits were measured using inputs based upoedjpdtes for similar instruments in active marlaats, therefore, were classified as Le\
investments. As of February 2, 2013 and Januarg@8?2 the Company also had lotegm variable rate bank credit loans with carryiadue:
of $38,000,000 and $25,000,000espectively. The fair values of the variableerbink loans approximate and are based on theiirmg
values. The Company has no Level 3 investmenta@significant unobservable inputs.

Non Financial Assets Measured at Fair Value - Noraerring Basis

As of February 2, 2013 and January 28, 2@i2 Company had an intangible FCC broadcastingndieeasset with carrying values
$12,000,000 and $23,111,000@espectively. The Company estimates the fairevalfiits FCC television broadcast license assetamily by
using incomehased discounted cash flow models with the assistahan independent outside fair value consulfBimé. discounted cash fl¢
models utilize a range of assumptions includingereies, operating profit margin, projected capitgdemditures and an unobservable ii
discount rate of 10%. The Company concluded thatrthuts used in its intangible FCC broadcastiogrise asset valuation are Level 3 inputs

The following table provides a reconciliation oktbeginning and ending balances of fimancial assets measured at fair value
nonrecurring basis that use significant unobseesvatguts (Level 3):

February 2, January 28,
2013 2012
Intangible FCC Broadcasting License Asset:
Beginning balance $ 23,111,00 $ 23,111,00
Losses included in earnings (asset impairment) (11,1112,00) —
Ending balance $ 12,000,00 $ 23,111,00

(8) Preferred Stock and Long-Term Payable

In February 2011, the Company made a $2.5 miliapment to GE Capital Equity Investments, Inc. ("Béliity"), in connection wi
obtaining a consent for the execution of a comntooksequity offering in December 2010, reducing tlistanding accrued dividends pay:
on the Series B Preferred Stock and recorded a ®illn charge to income related to the early preferredkstiebt extinguishment.
April 2011, the Company redeemed all of its outdag Series B Preferred Stock for $40.9 milliopaid accrued Series B Preferred divide
of $6.4 million and recorded a $24.5 millicharge related to the early preferred stock detmngxishment. In fiscal 2010, the Company ma
$2.5 million payment to GE Equity in connection with obtainingansent for the execution of a term loan redutirggoutstanding accru
dividends payable on the Series B Preferred Stodkacorded a $1.2 million charge related to eprbferred stock debt extinguishment.

In the third quarter of fiscal 2009, the Companyeesd into a longerm agreement with one of its larger service pters to defer
material portion of its monthly contractual cashympant obligation for services over the next thfeeal years. All services under t
arrangement are being recognized as expense raiablythe term of the agreement. As of January2R82, the total deferred amount v
$12,347,000, and is included in accrued liabsitie the accompanying January 28, 2012 balancd.dhemnnection with securing a newiC
million credit facility on February 9, 2012, the @pany made an additional $12,365,@2¥ment, paying off all remaining deferre